
1 
 

Boulder City Council Retreat 
January 12-13, 2014 

Rembrandt Yard – 1301 Spruce Street 
 

"Vision without action is merely a dream. Action without vision just passes the time. Vision with 
action can change the world." - Joel A. Barker 

Day One: January 12, 2014 

8:00 am Laying the Foundation  
“The prejudices people feel about each other disappear when they get to know 
each other.” – James T. Kirk 
 
• Each member of Council will share with the group who the greatest 

influences in her/his life have been and what the most formative event of 
her/his life was. 

• Each member of Council will have 4 minutes to share this information. 

8:45 am Visioning the Future of Boulder 
“A vision is not just a picture of what could be; it is an appeal to our better selves, 
a call to become something more.” - Rosabeth Moss Kanter 
 
• Each member of Council will share with the group the highest priority 

element of her/his vision for the City of Boulder. Vision elements will look 
10 to 15 years ahead and answer the question, “What is one thing you hope 
will be different or better in Boulder in the year 2025 or 2030?” 

• Vision elements will be brief and at the conceptual level. Council will discuss 
these concepts in greater detail after lunch. Each member will have 3 
minutes to share her/his vision element.  

 
9:15 am        Break  
      
9:30 am          Visioning the Future of Boulder, continued 

• Council members will share their second priority vision element with the 
group.  

• Each member of Council will have 3 minutes. 
 

10:00 am         Discussion and Reconciliation of Any Incompatible or Critically Absent Vision  
Elements 
• Members of Council will identify and resolve any proposed vision elements 

that are inconsistent or incompatible with one another to ensure that the 
upcoming small group discussions have clear direction. 

• Members of Council will also take a few moments to review the list of vision 
elements to ensure that no critical items are missing. 

Packet Page  1

http://www.searchquotes.com/quotation/The_prejudices_people_feel_about_each_other_disappear_when_they_get_to_know_each_other./378915/
http://www.searchquotes.com/quotation/The_prejudices_people_feel_about_each_other_disappear_when_they_get_to_know_each_other./378915/
http://www.brainyquote.com/quotes/authors/r/rosabeth_moss_kanter.html


2 
 

• Members of Council will identify any items on the vision list that are 
important but for which there is no Council role.  

 
10:30 am          Other Council Priorities 

• Each member of Council will have 2 final minutes to identify another vision 
element, a priority item that is already on the two-year staff work plan, 
and/or a "wish list" item that s/he would like staff to pursue if there are 
opportunities in the next 5 years.  

• Non-vision items will not be discussed again until the prioritization discussion 
on Day 2 of the retreat. 

 
11:00 am Visioning – What Do We Mean When We Say…? 

“I always wanted to be somebody, but now I realize I should have been more 
specific.” -- Lily Tomlin  
 
• Working in assigned groups of 3, Council members will discuss their thoughts 

on how to break down vision elements from the previous discussion into 
smaller vision components.  

• Each discussion group will discuss multiple vision elements. The number of 
vision elements assigned to each discussion group and the time allocated to 
each element will be determined during the retreat based on the number 
elements that emerge during the previous discussion. 

• The work product of these discussions will be 3 to 5 bulleted vision 
components for each vision element. 

 
12:00 pm Lunch – Change Seats upon Return from Lunch 
 
12:30 pm Visioning Components – Reports from Discussion Group 

Each discussion group will have six minutes to share their short list of vision 
components for each vision element they discussed. Council members will have 
an opportunity to ask clarifying questions to ensure understanding of the vision 
components that emerge from each discussion group. 

 
1:00 pm Creating a Shared Vision 

• Council members will discuss the vision components that emerged from the 
group discussions.  

• Council members will be encouraged to think in terms of “yes, if” when 
considering their level of support for each vision element and its associated 
components. This will help move the group toward collaborative agreement. 

• The goal of the discussion is to find Council agreement on a shared vision for 
the future of Boulder, knowing that some items in the vision may not be 
priorities for 2014 or even 2015  

 
2:30 pm Adjourn 

Packet Page  2

http://www.brainyquote.com/quotes/quotes/l/lilytomlin109612.html
http://www.brainyquote.com/quotes/quotes/l/lilytomlin109612.html
http://www.brainyquote.com/quotes/authors/l/lily_tomlin.html


3 
 

 
Day Two: January 13, 2014 

Note: Council members should choose different seats than those they enjoyed on Day One. 

9:00 am Brief Recap of Day One 

9:15 am What Can Be Achieved in the Next Two Years 
“If you align expectations with reality, you will never be disappointed.” - Terrell 
Owens  

• Working in different assigned discussion groups than Day One, Council 
members will identify what they think could be accomplished in 2014-2015 
for each vision component. These discussions may require Council to request 
input from staff from time to time. 

• Discussion groups will work to identify one or two specific desired outcomes 
that could be achieved for each vision component. 

• Groups may also identify additional desired outcomes they envision in three 
or more years. These additional outcomes will be captured for ongoing 
future reference. 

• Multiple groups may discuss the same vision component to get different 
perspectives on desired/possible outcomes. 

10:30 am Break 

10:45 am What Can Be Achieved in the Next Two Years – Reports from Discussion Groups 

• Each discussion group will share the one or two specific desired outcomes 
they see for each vision component in 2014-2015. They may also briefly 
share any additional outcomes they identified for the longer term. 

• Council members will have an opportunity to ask clarifying questions to 
ensure understanding of the desired outcomes that emerge from each 
discussion group. 

 
12:00 pm Lunch – Change Seats upon Return from Lunch 
 
12:30 pm Agreeing on Desired Outcomes  

• Council members will discuss the desired outcomes for each vision 
component that emerged from the group discussions.  

• The goal of the discussion is to find Council agreement on desired outcomes 
for each vision component, knowing that some items in the vision may not 
be priorities for 2014-2015.  
  

2:00 pm Break 
 
2:15 pm Prioritizing and Fine-Tuning to Create Our Shared Roadmap for 2014-2014 

Packet Page  3

http://www.brainyquote.com/quotes/quotes/t/terrellowe429895.html
http://www.brainyquote.com/quotes/authors/t/terrell_owens.html
http://www.brainyquote.com/quotes/authors/t/terrell_owens.html


4 
 

“Coming together is a beginning; keeping together is progress; working together 
is success.” – Henry Ford 
 
• Council members will identify which vision component outcome each thinks 

the highest priority for Council and staff to pursue together in 2014-2015. 
• Council members will include any items from the list of two-year non-vision 

elements from Day One that are priorities for them.  
• In identifying priorities, Council members should take a step back from their 

own suggested vision elements and give consideration to what is most 
important for the community as a whole, which actions may energize or 
transform the community, which actions build on or integrate well with 
existing efforts, etc. Members should also give some thought to the balance 
between new and existing work efforts and the overall workload for Council 
and for staff. Not all great ideas can be priorities for 2014-2015. 

• Each council member will have 3 minutes to share her/his priorities. 
• Council will then discuss and refine the identified priorities to find agreement 

about what the Council and staff priorities for 2014-2015 ought to be. 

3:30 pm Using the Vision as a Touchstone for the Future 
• Council members will review the vision elements that emerged from their 

discussion on Day One of the retreat and assess whether the prioritized 
outcomes and associated work are true to the vision. 

• Members of Council will also affirm the vision as a touchstone to inform their 
work into the future—in 2014-2015 and beyond. 
 

4:00 pm Continuing to Improve How Council Works Together 
• Members of Council will discuss what they think are the most important 

factors in successful Council interactions and determine if the current 
operating protocols support those factors. 

• The group will make any necessary changes to the operating protocols to 
ensure that they support the factors in successful Council interactions.  

 
4:30 pm  Committee Assignments for Council Members 

• Members of Council will briefly review the opportunities to serve on 
committees within and external to the City. 

• Council members will volunteer for service on the available committees.  

5:00 pm Adjourn 

Attachments: 

A. Retreat Committee Report 12/17/2013 
B. Boards and Commissions Feedback 
C. Public Feedback 

Packet Page  4



To:	   City	  Council	  Members	  
From:	   Retreat	  Committee:	  Suzanne	  Jones,	  Lisa	  Morzel,	  Jane	  Brautigam,	  Alisa	  Lewis	  
Date:	   December	  16,	  2013	  
Re:	   Preparation	  and	  Background	  Reading	  for	  City	  Council	  Retreat	  in	  January	  
	  
Below	  please	  find	  our	  proposed	  plan	  for	  the	  Council’s	  annual	  retreat.	  	  We	  hope	  to	  make	  our	  
upcoming	  retreat	  as	  productive	  and	  useful	  as	  possible—keeping	  what	  has	  worked	  best	  in	  the	  
past,	  and	  retooling	  other	  elements	  to	  provide	  an	  opportunity	  for	  fresh	  thinking.	  
	  
The	  retreat	  will	  be	  two	  full	  days—Sunday	  &	  Monday,	  January	  12	  &	  13th—from	  9:00	  a.m.	  to	  
5:00	  p.m.	  We	  will	  be	  starting	  late	  enough	  for	  people	  to	  have	  exercised	  beforehand	  if	  they	  
choose,	  and	  have	  decided	  against	  any	  evening	  sessions	  when	  people	  tend	  to	  be	  at	  lower	  
energy.	  
	  
Our	  venue	  will	  be	  downtown	  at	  Rembrandt	  Yard	  (1301	  Spruce	  St,	  across	  from	  Boulderado),	  
which	  is	  a	  beautiful	  and	  evocative	  space	  that	  is	  easily	  accessible	  but	  as	  a	  new	  locale	  invites	  
us	  to	  “retreat”	  from	  our	  normal	  perspective	  and	  look	  at	  things	  anew.	  
	  
After	  interviewing	  several	  facilitators	  to	  explore	  new	  possibilities,	  we	  chose	  a	  facilitator	  we	  
have	  used	  before—Heather	  Bergman—because	  of	  her	  outstanding	  ability	  to	  help	  us	  vision	  
together	  strategically,	  and	  because	  she	  is	  “good	  at	  herding	  cats”	  (and	  we	  all	  know	  that	  we	  
could	  use	  some	  herding!).	  We	  have	  asked	  Heather	  to	  be	  assertive	  in	  holding	  us	  each	  
accountable	  to	  being	  clear,	  concise,	  civil,	  and	  to	  share	  the	  floor	  time	  equitably	  with	  each	  
other.	  	  We	  also	  have	  asked	  Heather	  to	  keep	  us	  fully	  engaged	  with	  the	  topic	  being	  discussed	  
with	  the	  group,	  avoiding	  any	  side	  bar	  conversations.	  	  
	  
To	  help	  us	  “vision”	  both	  literally	  and	  figuratively,	  we	  also	  will	  have	  a	  graphic	  recorder	  join	  us	  
during	  the	  retreat	  to	  help	  us	  visualize	  graphically	  the	  path	  forward	  that	  we	  are	  creating	  
together.	  
	  
The	  retreat	  is	  organized	  in	  four	  parts,	  of	  varying	  weights:	  

1. A	  brief	  time	  on	  the	  first	  morning	  will	  be	  dedicated	  to	  get	  to	  know	  each	  other	  a	  bit	  
more	  deeply,	  based	  on	  the	  belief	  that	  having	  an	  understanding	  and	  appreciation	  of	  
who	  each	  of	  us	  are	  and	  where	  we	  are	  each	  coming	  from,	  will	  lead	  to	  a	  more	  
cohesive,	  respectful,	  and	  high-‐functioning	  Council.	  To	  that	  end,	  we	  ask	  you	  to	  come	  
prepared	  to	  share	  a	  bit	  of	  “your	  story”	  with	  your	  colleagues	  by	  answering	  two	  
questions	  below.	  

2. The	  majority	  and	  remainder	  of	  Day	  One	  will	  be	  used	  to	  pause	  and	  think	  about	  where	  
we	  want	  Boulder	  to	  be	  in	  10-‐15	  years.	  	  Rather	  than	  just	  a	  simple	  continuation	  of	  
where	  our	  current	  work	  plan	  is	  already	  headed,	  we	  want	  to	  make	  sure	  this	  long-‐term	  
vision	  best	  prepares	  us	  on	  which	  to	  build	  the	  desired	  outcomes	  and	  priorities	  for	  the	  
next	  two	  years.	  

3. The	  majority	  of	  Day	  Two	  will	  be	  dedicated	  to	  priority	  outcomes	  for	  the	  next	  two	  
years,	  based	  on	  the	  collective	  vision	  that	  emerged	  from	  discussions	  on	  Day	  One.	  Staff	  

Attachment A  Page1Packet Page  5

lewia1
Typewritten Text

lewia1
Typewritten Text

lewia1
Typewritten Text

lewia1
Typewritten Text

lewia1
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

lewia1
Typewritten Text
    

lewia1
Typewritten Text

lewia1
Typewritten Text

lewia1
Typewritten Text

lewia1
Typewritten Text



will	  then	  take	  this	  input	  to	  fashion	  a	  detailed	  2014	  work	  plan	  for	  our	  approval	  in	  
February.	  While	  we	  may	  very	  likely	  adopt	  many	  of	  our	  current	  priorities	  again,	  this	  is	  
our	  opportunity	  as	  a	  new	  Council	  with	  fresh	  blood	  to	  collectively	  and	  strategically	  
plot	  a	  course	  together.	  	  So	  we	  will	  ask	  you	  to	  have	  done	  some	  deep	  thinking	  over	  the	  
holidays	  about	  the	  questions	  outlined	  below.	  

4. At	  the	  end	  of	  Day	  Two,	  we	  will	  conclude	  the	  retreat	  by	  deciding	  on	  this	  Council’s	  
working	  agreements,	  as	  well	  as	  divvying	  up	  outside	  committee	  assignments.	  So	  
please	  review	  the	  Council	  Working	  Agreements	  (attached)	  to	  see	  what	  else	  you	  
would	  like	  to	  add,	  subtract	  or	  amend,	  and	  come	  with	  your	  prioritized	  committee	  
assignment	  aspirations.	  

	  
We	  are	  excited	  about	  the	  upcoming	  retreat	  and	  its	  potential	  to	  launch	  this	  new	  Council	  off	  
on	  a	  strategic	  and	  well-‐thought	  out	  plan	  of	  work	  for	  the	  next	  two	  years.	  Thank	  you	  in	  
advance	  for	  your	  preparation	  and	  enthusiasm!	  
	  
RETREAT	  PREPARATION	  &	  REQUIRED	  READING	  
	  
Rather	  than	  assigning	  written	  homework	  which	  has	  often	  failed	  to	  produce	  the	  desired	  
results,	  we	  are	  asking	  people	  to	  read	  a	  few	  relatively	  short	  documents—in	  particular	  the	  
beginning	  of	  the	  Boulder	  Valley	  Comprehensive	  Plan,	  which	  is	  our	  guiding	  document,	  do	  
some	  deep	  thinking	  beforehand,	  and	  come	  prepared	  to	  answer	  the	  questions	  outlined	  
below.	  The	  quality	  of	  the	  retreat	  will	  be	  reflected	  in	  the	  quality	  of	  thinking	  that	  we	  each	  do	  
beforehand.	  In	  early	  January,	  staff	  will	  also	  compile	  and	  send	  us	  input	  from	  Boards	  &	  
Commissions	  and	  the	  public,	  as	  it	  is	  available,	  for	  us	  to	  reflect	  upon	  in	  advance.	  
	  
Read	  and	  reflect	  on	  the	  following	  documents:	  
1. 	  Sustainability	  Framework	  (2	  pages)-‐-‐ATTACHED	  
2. 	  Section	  1	  of	  the	  Boulder	  Valley	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  (57	  pages)—ATTACHED	  
3. 	  Input	  from	  Boards	  &	  Commissions	  and	  the	  public	  as	  available—TO	  BE	  SENT	  IN	  EARLY	  JAN	  
4. 	  Council	  Working	  Agreements—ATTACHED	  
5. 	  Council	  Boards	  &	  Committee	  Assignments-‐-‐ATTACHED	  
	  
Come	  prepared	  to	  answer	  the	  following	  questions:	  
1. Who	  You	  Are	  	  
• What	  are	  one	  or	  two	  of	  the	  greatest	  influences	  in	  your	  life	  and	  what	  is	  a	  key	  formative	  

event	  in	  your	  life	  that	  has	  shaped	  who	  you	  are?	  (Be	  prepared	  to	  share	  for	  no	  more	  that	  4	  
minutes	  total)	  

	  
2. Your	  Vision	  for	  the	  Future	  
• When	  you	  think	  ahead	  10-‐15	  years	  from	  now,	  what	  is	  your	  top	  priority(s)	  for	  one	  

significant	  thing	  you	  hope	  will	  be	  different	  or	  better	  in	  Boulder?	  (You	  will	  be	  asked	  to	  
share	  your	  top	  couple	  priorities,	  and	  then	  we	  will	  flesh	  out	  vision	  elements	  in	  more	  detail	  
in	  breakout	  groups.	  On	  Day	  Two	  we	  will	  decide	  on	  priority	  outcomes	  for	  the	  next	  two	  
years	  that	  emerges	  from	  this	  collective	  vision.)	  

Attachment A  Page2Packet Page  6

lewia1
Typewritten Text



SAFE COMMUNITY: When the City of 
Boulder…enforces the law and protects 
residents and property from physical harm; 
and fosters a climate of safety and social 

inclusiveness…then it will be a Safe Community.

HEALTHY & SOCIALLY THRIVING 
COMMUNITY: When the City of Boulder… 
supports the physical and mental well-being 
of its community members; cultivates a wide-

range of recreational, cultural, educational, and social 
opportunities; fosters inclusion, embraces diversity and 
respects human rights…then it will be a Healthy and 
Socially Thriving Community.

LIVABLE COMMUNITY: When the City 
of Boulder… sustains and enhances 
a compact development pattern with 
appropriate densities and mix of uses 

that provides convenient access to daily needs for 
people of all ages and abilities; supports a diversity of 
housing and employment options for vibrant and livable 
neighborhoods and business districts; and maintains 
abundant and accessible public gathering spaces…
then it will be a Livable Community.  

ACCESSIBLE & CONNECTED 
COMMUNITY: When the City of Boulder… 
maintains and develops a balanced 
transportation system that supports all 

modes of travel; maintains a safe system and shifts 
trips away from single-occupant vehicles; and provides 
open access to information, encourages  innovation, 

enhances communication and promotes community 
engagement… then it will be an Accessible and 
Connected Community.

ENVIRONMENTALLY SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITY: When the City of Boulder… 
promotes an ecologically balanced 
community; prevents and mitigates threats 

to the environment; and ensures the efficient use of 
energy resources…then it will be an Environmentally 
Sustainable Community.

ECONOMICALLY VITAL COMMUNITY: 
When the City of Boulder… develops 
and maintains a healthy, resilient economy 
and maintains high levels of services and 

amenities…then it will be an Economically Vital 
Community.  

GOOD GOVERNANCE: When the City 
of Boulder…models stewardship of the 
financial, human, information and physical 
assets of the community; supports strategic 

decision making with timely, reliable and accurate 
data and analysis; and enhances and facilitates 
transparency, accuracy, efficiency, effectiveness and 
quality customer service…then it will have provided 
Good Governance.

When the City of 
Boulder… supports 

the physical and mental well-being of its community members; cultivates a 
wide-range of recreational, cultural, educational, and social opportunities; 
fosters inclusion, embraces diversity and respects human rights…then it will be a 
Healthy and Socially Thriving Community. 

When the City of Boulder…enforces the law and 
protects residents and property from physical harm; 

and fosters a climate of safety and social inclusiveness…then it will be a Safe 
Community.

When the City of 
Boulder… supports 

When the City of Boulder…sustains and enhances 
a compact development pattern with appropriate 

the physical and mental well-being of its community members; cultivates a 
wide-range of recreational, cultural, educational, and social opportunities; 
fosters inclusion, embraces diversity and respects human rights…then it will be a 
Healthy and Socially Thriving Community. 

densities and mix of uses that provides convenient access to daily needs for 
people of all ages and abilities; supports a diversity of housing and 
employment options for vibrant and livable neighborhoods and business 
districts; and maintains abundant and accessible public gathering 
spaces…then it will be a Livable Community.  

SUSTAINABILITY FRAMEWORK

The city is continuously working to provide service 
excellence for an inspired future and moving 
towards the vision of One City, One Boulder. As part 
of this effort, the sustainability framework helps to 
provide a common language for community and City 
Council goals and priorities and ensure alignment 
across the city organization. 

The framework uses seven broad categories 
as desired community outcomes necessary for 
Boulder’s vision of a great community. When 
the city implements the strategies outlined in 
this framework, then Boulder will have a Safe, 
Healthy & Socially Thriving, Livable, Accessible 
& Connected, Environmentally Sustainable, and 
Economically Vital Community and provide Good 
Governance.  Strategies to achieve those outcomes 
are developed and advanced in the annual budget 
as well as strategic and master plans.  

GETTING AWAY FROM “SILOS” TO WORK 
TOWARD MULTIPLE GOALS 
Alignment across the organization with the 
wide range of community priorities, allows the 
city organization to evaluate whether or not 
expectations are being met and to more nimbly 
adjust, if necessary. Overall, the framework 
encourages holistic, systemic thinking and allows 
for more strategic decision-making as the city 
moves together in the same direction. There are key 
concepts like resiliency, equity and engagement that 
are embedded in each category because they are 
essential in all areas.   

USE THE FRAMEWORK IN PLANS, PROJECTS 
AND KEY INITIATIVES 
Specific initiatives to achieve these Boulder 
outcomes and strategies are outlined in greater 
detail in master/strategic plans and the city’s 
budget. Certain multiple-objective or cross-
departmental projects will benefit from using the 
framework to guide strategies but it may not be 
effective or applicable for all projects. Efforts are 
ongoing to align the framework with budget process 
and key initiatives. 

Attachment A - Sustainability Framework

Attachment A  Page3Packet Page  7



The city is continuously working to provide service 
excellence for an inspired future and moving 
towards the vision of One City, One Boulder. As part 
of this effort, the sustainability framework helps to 
provide a common language for community and City 
Council goals and priorities and ensure alignment 
across the city organization. 

The framework uses seven broad categories 
as desired community outcomes necessary for 
Boulder’s vision of a great community. When 
the city implements the strategies outlined in 
this framework, then Boulder will have a Safe, 
Healthy & Socially Thriving, Livable, Accessible 
& Connected, Environmentally Sustainable, and 
Economically Vital Community and provide Good 
Governance.  Strategies to achieve those outcomes 
are developed and advanced in the annual budget 
as well as strategic and master plans.  

GETTING AWAY FROM “SILOS” TO WORK 
TOWARD MULTIPLE GOALS 
Alignment across the organization with the 
wide range of community priorities, allows the 
city organization to evaluate whether or not 
expectations are being met and to more nimbly 
adjust, if necessary. Overall, the framework 
encourages holistic, systemic thinking and allows 
for more strategic decision-making as the city 
moves together in the same direction. There are key 
concepts like resiliency, equity and engagement that 
are embedded in each category because they are 
essential in all areas.   

USE THE FRAMEWORK IN PLANS, PROJECTS 
AND KEY INITIATIVES 
Specific initiatives to achieve these Boulder 
outcomes and strategies are outlined in greater 
detail in master/strategic plans and the city’s 
budget. Certain multiple-objective or cross-
departmental projects will benefit from using the 
framework to guide strategies but it may not be 
effective or applicable for all projects. Efforts are 
ongoing to align the framework with budget process 
and key initiatives. 

SAFE COMMUNITY: 
• Enforces the law, taking into account the 

needs of individuals and community values
• Plans for and provides timely and effective 

response to emergencies and natural 
disasters

• Fosters a climate of safety for individuals in 
homes, businesses, neighborhoods and public 
places

• Encourages shared responsibility, provides 
education on personal and community safety 
and fosters an environment that is welcoming 
and inclusive

HEALTHY & SOCIALLY THRIVING 
COMMUNITY: 
• Cultivates a wide-range of recreational, 

cultural, educational, and social opportunities
• Supports the physical and mental well-being 

of its community members and actively 
partners with others to improve the welfare of 
those in need

• Fosters inclusion, embraces diversity and 
respects human rights

• Enhances multi-generational community 
enrichment and community engagement

LIVABLE COMMUNITY: 
• Promotes and sustains a safe, clean and 

attractive place to live, work and play
• Facilitates housing options to accommodate a 

diverse community
• Provides safe and well-maintained public 

infrastructure, and provides adequate and 
appropriate regulation of public/ private 
development and resources

• Encourages sustainable development 
supported by reliable and affordable city 
services

• Supports and enhances neighborhood 
livability for all members of the community

ENVIRONMENTALLY SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITY: 
• Supports and sustains natural resource and 

energy conservation
• Promotes and regulates an ecologically 

balanced community
• Mitigates and abates threats to the 

environment 

ACCESSIBLE & CONNECTED COMMUNITY: 
• Offers and encourages a variety of safe, 

accessible and sustainable mobility options
• Plans, designs and maintains effective 

infrastructure networks
• Supports strong regional multimodal 

connections
• Provides open access to information, 

encourages innovation, enhances 
communication and promotes community 
engagement

• Supports a balanced transportation system 
that reflects effective land use and reduces 
congestion

ECONOMICALLY VITAL COMMUNITY: 
•  Supports an environment for creativity and 

innovation
• Promotes a qualified and diversified work 

force that meets employers’ needs and 
supports broad-based economic diversity

• Fosters regional and public / private 
collaboration with key institutions and 
organizations that contribute to economic 
sustainability

• Invests in infrastructure and amenities that 
attract, sustain and retain diverse businesses, 
entrepreneurs and the associated primary 
jobs

GOOD GOVERNANCE: 
• Models stewardship and sustainability of 

the city’s financial, human, information and 
physical assets

• Supports strategic decision-making with 
timely, reliable and accurate data and analysis

• Enhances and facilitates transparency, 
accuracy, efficiency, effectiveness and quality 
customer service in all city business

• Supports, develops and enhances 
relationships between the city and community/ 
regional partners

• Provides assurance of regulatory and policy 
compliance

When the City of 
Boulder… supports 

the physical and mental well-being of its community members; cultivates a 
wide-range of recreational, cultural, educational, and social opportunities; 
fosters inclusion, embraces diversity and respects human rights…then it will be a 
Healthy and Socially Thriving Community. 

When the City of Boulder…enforces the law and 
protects residents and property from physical harm; 

and fosters a climate of safety and social inclusiveness…then it will be a Safe 
Community.

When the City of 
Boulder… supports 

When the City of Boulder…sustains and enhances 
a compact development pattern with appropriate 

the physical and mental well-being of its community members; cultivates a 
wide-range of recreational, cultural, educational, and social opportunities; 
fosters inclusion, embraces diversity and respects human rights…then it will be a 
Healthy and Socially Thriving Community. 

densities and mix of uses that provides convenient access to daily needs for 
people of all ages and abilities; supports a diversity of housing and 
employment options for vibrant and livable neighborhoods and business 
districts; and maintains abundant and accessible public gathering 
spaces…then it will be a Livable Community.  

SUSTAINABILITY FRAMEWORK

Attachment A - Sustainability Framework

Attachment A  Page4Packet Page  8



Attachment A  Page5Packet Page  9



Attachment A  Page6Packet Page  10



Attachment A  Page7Packet Page  11



Attachment A  Page8Packet Page  12



Attachment A  Page9Packet Page  13



Attachment A  Page10Packet Page  14



Attachment A  Page11Packet Page  15



Attachment A  Page12Packet Page  16



Attachment A  Page13Packet Page  17



Attachment A  Page14Packet Page  18



Attachment A  Page15Packet Page  19



Attachment A  Page16Packet Page  20



Attachment A  Page17Packet Page  21



Attachment A  Page18Packet Page  22



Attachment A  Page19Packet Page  23



Attachment A  Page20Packet Page  24



Attachment A  Page21Packet Page  25



Attachment A  Page22Packet Page  26



Attachment A  Page23Packet Page  27



Attachment A  Page24Packet Page  28



Attachment A  Page25Packet Page  29



Attachment A  Page26Packet Page  30



Attachment A  Page27Packet Page  31



Attachment A  Page28Packet Page  32



Attachment A  Page29Packet Page  33



Attachment A  Page30Packet Page  34



Attachment A  Page31Packet Page  35



Attachment A  Page32Packet Page  36



Attachment A  Page33Packet Page  37



Attachment A  Page34Packet Page  38



Attachment A  Page35Packet Page  39



Attachment A  Page36Packet Page  40



Attachment A  Page37Packet Page  41



Attachment A  Page38Packet Page  42



Attachment A  Page39Packet Page  43



Attachment A  Page40Packet Page  44



Attachment A  Page41Packet Page  45



Attachment A  Page42Packet Page  46



Attachment A  Page43Packet Page  47



Attachment A  Page44Packet Page  48



Attachment A  Page45Packet Page  49



Attachment A  Page46Packet Page  50



Attachment A  Page47Packet Page  51



Attachment A  Page48Packet Page  52



Attachment A  Page49Packet Page  53



Attachment A  Page50Packet Page  54



Attachment A  Page51Packet Page  55



Attachment A  Page52Packet Page  56



Attachment A  Page53Packet Page  57



Attachment A  Page54Packet Page  58



Attachment A  Page55Packet Page  59



Attachment A  Page56Packet Page  60



Attachment A  Page57Packet Page  61



Attachment A  Page58Packet Page  62



Attachment A  Page59Packet Page  63



Attachment A  Page60Packet Page  64



Attachment A  Page61Packet Page  65



1/30/13     Approved   01-22-2013 

2013 City Council Committee Assignments 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS 
Beyond the Fences Coalition Morzel, Plass 
Boulder County Consortium of Cities Karakehian 
Colorado Municipal League (CML) – Policy Committee Jones, Appelbaum (Castillo – staff alternate) 
Denver Regional Council of Governments (DRCOG) Jones  
Housing Authority (Boulder Housing Partners)  
Metro Mayors Caucus Appelbaum 
National League of Cities (NLC) Appelbaum 
Resource Conservation Advisory Board Plass, Morzel (at large seat) 
Rocky Flats Stewardship Morzel, Plass (1st alternate), Castillo (2nd alternate) 
University of Colorado (CU) / City Oversight Jones, Karakehian 
US36 Mayors and Commission Coalition Appelbaum,  
US36 Commuting Solutions Karakehian  
Urban Drainage and Flood Control District Morzel 

 
LOCAL ORGANIZATIONS 
Boulder Museum of Contemporary Art (BMoCA) Cowles 
Boulder Convention and Visitors Bureau Plass  
Dairy Center for the Arts Karakehian 
Downtown Business Improvement District Board Plass, Jones 
 
INTERNAL CITY COMMITTEES 
Audit Committee Morzel, Cowles 
Boards and Commissions Committee Plass 
Boulder Urban Renewal Authority (BURA)  
Mayoral Appointment 

 

Charter Committee Morzel, Cowles, Karakehian 
Civic Use Pad/ 9th and Canyon Morzel, Jones 
Council Budget Action Plan Committee Plass 
Evaluation Committee Karakehian, Morzel 
Legislative Committee Karakehian, Jones 
 
SISTER CITY REPRESENTATIVES 
Jalapa, Nicaragua Jones 
Kisumu, Kenya Morzel 
Llasa, Tibet  
Dushanbe, Tajikistan Karakehian 
Yamagata, Japan  
Mante, Mexico Plass 
Yateras, Cuba Cowles 
Sister City Sub-Committee Morzel, Cowles 
 

Attachment A  Page62Packet Page  66



1/30/13     Approved   01-22-2013 

2013 City Council Committee Assignments 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS 
Beyond the Fences Coalition Morzel, Plass 
Boulder County Consortium of Cities Karakehian, Wilson (alt) 
Colorado Municipal League (CML) – Policy Committee Jones, Appelbaum (Castillo – staff alternate) 
Denver Regional Council of Governments (DRCOG) Becker, Jones (Alternate) 
Housing Authority (Boulder Housing Partners) Ageton 
Metro Mayors Caucus Appelbaum 
National League of Cities (NLC) Appelbaum 
Resource Conservation Advisory Board Plass, Morzel (at large seat) 
Rocky Flats Stewardship Morzel, Plass (1st alternate), Castillo (2nd alternate) 
University of Colorado (CU) / City Oversight Wilson, Jones, Karakehian 
US36 Mayors and Commission Coalition Appelbaum, Ageton (alternate) 
US36 Commuting Solutions Ageton, Karakehian (alternate) 
Urban Drainage and Flood Control District Morzel 

 
LOCAL ORGANIZATIONS 
Boulder Museum of Contemporary Art (BMoCA) Cowles, Becker (alternate) 
Boulder Convention and Visitors Bureau Becker, Plass (alternate)  
Dairy Center for the Arts Karakehian 
Downtown Business Improvement District Board Plass, Jones 
 
INTERNAL CITY COMMITTEES 
Audit Committee Morzel, Becker, Cowles 
Boards and Commissions Committee Ageton, Plass 
Boulder Urban Renewal Authority (BURA)  
Mayoral Appointment 

Becker (appointed through 2015) 

Charter Committee Morzel, Cowles, Ageton, Karakehian 
Civic Use Pad/ 9th and Canyon Morzel, Jones, Becker 
Council Budget Action Plan Committee Ageton, Becker, Plass 
Evaluation Committee Karakehian, Morzel 
Legislative Committee Ageton, Karakehian, Wilson, Jones 
 
SISTER CITY REPRESENTATIVES 
Jalapa, Nicaragua Jones 
Kisumu, Kenya Morzel 
Llasa, Tibet Ageton 
Dushanbe, Tajikistan Karakehian 
Yamagata, Japan Wilson 
Mante, Mexico Plass 
Yateras, Cuba Cowles 
Sister City Sub-Committee Morzel, Cowles 
 

Attachment A  Page63Packet Page  67



Approved by Council 10/19/04  

Council Working Agreements 
 

Council Process: 
• The Council will work on general discipline in being prepared to ask questions and make 

comments. 
• The Council asks the Mayor to intervene if discussion on agenda items extends beyond a 

reasonable time frame. 
• The council will engage in the practice of colloquy to fully explore the different sides of a 

specific point. 
• The Mayor will ask the city clerk to set the timer lights for council members if 

discussions begin to exceed efficient debate.  Members should respect the lights as a time 
reminder, but will not be bound by them as absolute limits. 

• Rather than restating a point, council members should simply say “I agree.” 
• The council agenda committee may, with advance notice, adjust each public speaker's 

time to two rather than three minutes during public hearings for items on which many 
speakers want to address the council. 

• Council members will grant each other permission to mentor and support each other on 
how each person contributes to the goal of being accountable for demonstrating 
community leadership. 

• In order to hear each other respectfully and honor the public, council will avoid body 
language that could convey disrespect, side conversations, talking to staff, whispering to 
neighboring council members, passing notes, and leaving the council chambers. 

• Regarding not revisiting past discussions, the council should check-in with fellow 
members periodically to ensure that this is not an issue. 

 
Council Communication: 

• Council members agree to keep quasi-judicial roles scrupulously clean between members 
of boards and members of council, like expressing ideas to board members on things 
coming before the Board, and carefully disclose or recuse themselves when they're is 
involvement with board members on a topic.   

• Council agrees to e-mail the city manager about issues that they run into that staff or 
boards may be working on so that the manager can be actively involved in managing 
issues and keeping the full council informed well in advance of items coming before 
council for action.  

• Members will keep the full council informed on issues from committees, public groups or 
other agencies that they are following, the a hot line e-mails, brief verbal reports at the 
end of council meetings or other means. 

• The Council will find ways to support majority council decisions and adequately inform 
the public, through response letters that explain how divergent points of view were heard 
and honored in decisions, via standard e-mail responses for hot issues, by occasional 
council Letters to the Editor to clarify the facts, or by seeking out reporters after meetings 
to explain controversial decisions. 

 
Council Committees 

• Council goal committee meetings will be scheduled to accommodate the council 
members on the committee.   

• Notice of the times and places for each goal committee meeting will be noticed once per 
month in the Daily Camera.   

• The council agenda will include time for reports from committees under Matters from 
Members of Council, noting that written communications from the committees are 
appropriate as well. 

 
 

Attachment A  Page64Packet Page  68



Attachment B  Page 1Packet Page  69



  
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Boulder City Council 
FROM: Boulder Housing Partners Board of Commissioners 
DATE: January 3, 2014 
RE:  Input for Council Retreat 
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide ideas and information for your retreat. We begin with 
three compelling data points that frame our comments. 
 

 Every household in Boulder with an income less than $96,000 annually has an affordable 
housing problem. 

 
 Boulder loses 1,000 market-affordable units annually due to price inflation and replaces 

those lost units with an average of 50 affordable units each year. 
 

 And, every household that leaves Boulder in search of affordability and drives back in to 
work undermines the investment that Boulder citizens clearly want to make in a cleaner 
environment. 

 
2014 is a strategic planning year for Boulder Housing Partners.  In order to develop a near and 
midterm strategic plan, BHP retained the services of  Charles Buki and his company, czb LLC to 
evaluate a range of data; recent sales data, recent analysis procured by the City (BBC May 2013 
report), and other relevant information useful to developing an understanding of the housing 
situation in Boulder at the start 2014. The supporting data related to the three conclusions above 
is stunning 
 
According to a preliminary czb report submitted to BHP this week1: 
 
“The Boulder market has been so robust for so many years that a conventional response – no matter 
how transactionally creative on a deal-by-deal basis – will not yield meaningful impacts.  The significant 
accomplishments of the Boulder community in making it one of the most desirable places in America to 
live also make it one of the most expensive.  Consequently, Boulder’s lessening levels of economic 
diversity and increasing commuter pressures are, in reality, outgrowths of an ever more severe 
affordable housing problem. 
 
Though the magnitude of this problem is relatively new, the Boulder community has a long history of 
recognizing the importance of affordable housing, and doing something about it.  Among the most 
innovative and compelling efforts nationally, in fact, is Boulder’s inclusionary zoning policy, which stands 
as a major testament to the community’s attempt to ensure a measure of affordability. Our analysis 

                                                 
1 Until noted, the balance of this memo is czb’s report to BHP. 

Attachment B  Page 2Packet Page  70



 

suggests however, that despite such policies and the significant work of BHP and others, the enormity of 
today’s problem requires an even more substantial set of responses.   
 
We (czb) found that a significant percentage of the 55,000 cars that are driven into the City of Boulder 
each morning transport baristas, college employees (nearly 4,500 of them), public school teachers, 
janitors, radiology technicians, city staff, cashiers, and others to jobs that pay too little for them to 
acquire housing in the city.  While some commute because housing costs are so prohibitive they have no 
other option, and others do so to secure their home of choice, the bottom line numbers are striking.   
 

 Off campus student housing demand coupled with the rental housing needs of the city’s 19,000 
low wage workers means the city is short more than 8,000 low-income apartments, and that’s 
before taking into account the rental housing needs of another 16,000 moderate wage 
households (health care, local government, administrative services). See detail just below. 

 During the period 2000-2013, the number of owner-occupied homes valued below $200,000 fell 
by more than 2,800 (a 51% drop), and those valued below $300,000 fell from 11,316 in 2000 to 
4,442 by 2012 – a 61% decline.  On one hand sellers are making money; on the other, a 
consequence is that the typical buyer in 2000 employed in Boulder is now residing in Longmont 
and commuting. 

 In 2000 there were 223 homes in Boulder valued at more than $1M; today there are 1,755; In 
2000 there were 2,592 homes in Boulder valued at more than $500,000; today that number is 
9,750. 

 
There are nearly 19,000 Boulder city workers in retail, arts/entertainment/recreation, educational 
services, and accommodations/food service jobs (that average wages in the $15,000-$25,000 range) 

 

Job Category # Employees Average Wage 

Accommodation and food services 8,278 $17,405 

Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 1,641 $19,821 

Combined 9,919   

      

Educational Services 1,337 $26,902 

Retail 7,593 $27,975 

Combined 8,930   

      

Total 18,849   

Source:  Colorado Dept. of Labor and Employment (QCEW 2009), Boulder Economic Council 8-9. 

 
- Yet, as of 2012, there were just 8,503 apartments with rents below $1,000 (affordable to 

households up to 50% AMI) 
- As a result, even if low-wage workers and students all double up, their collective “need” for 

affordable rentals (34,000 ÷ 2 = 17,000) is still 2 times the available supply 
- Note:  This is before taking any of the following workers into account and the 15,000 CU 

students who live off campus in Boulder: 
 

Job Category # Employees Average Wage 

Administrative and Waste Management Services 2,670 $35,989 

Attachment B  Page 3Packet Page  71



Other Services 2,683 $37,453 

Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 1,343 $40,377 

Transportation and Warehousing 633 $41,777 

Health Care and Social Assistance 7,731 $43,108 

Government (incl. public universities and schools) 18,582 $51,525 

Total 33,642   

 
These are numbers with big implications.  Consider two. 
 

1. The housing market has been growing so dramatically in value recently, that since 2002, price 
inflation (over and above wage growth) has meant an average monthly loss of 84 apartments 
affordable to families with incomes from $17,000 to $96,000 for each of the last 13 years.  84 
affordable apartments lost each month to market forces. 

2. Boulder’s current community-wide efforts to provide affordable housing make only a modest 
dent in the problem each year; on average less than 50 affordable units a year come on line in a 
market shedding about 1,000 annually.  The Boulder response to a net loss of 1,000 affordable 
units a year is to add a hard-fought 50. 

  
[end czb report] 
 

This community has long understood and worked to address the need for affordable housing.  
But we may not have fully appreciated the size and urgency of the challenge as underscored in 
Mr. Buki’s report above.  Affordable housing is, and should be, a high priority especially given 
that housing is inextricably linked to environmental sustainability and community diversity.  
BHP requests that the City Council include the following in its 2014 goal setting and retreat 
discussion: 
 

1. Housing leadership:  We recognize that city staff is trying to find a permanent Housing 
Director.  We need a strong leader in place with proven experience in high cost market 
solutions, redevelopment and regional strategies.  We suggest that filling this position 
should be a high priority for 2014. 

2. Housing Strategy:  The city needs a comprehensive housing strategy, addressing the full 
range of housing needs (including special and high need populations) as well as middle 
market opportunities achieved by additional density, for the city in order to address the 
range of related vital goals – environmental, economic and social sustainability.  Housing 
is critical to all three and should be a primary focus area for 2014. 

3. Study Session:  We’d like to have a study session with Council to get your input for our 
strategic plan and to consider an array of policies that make redevelopment conducive to 
generating much more significant affordable housing production, and which explicitly 
link housing affordability to environmental impacts and community diversity. 

Attachment B  Page 4Packet Page  72



 
 
 
 
DATE: December 18, 2013 
 
TO: Members, Boulder City Council 
 City Manager, Jane Brautigam 
 
FROM: Boulder Arts Commission 
 
SUBJECT: Boulder Arts Commission Priorities that Inform the 2014 City Council Work Plan 
 
Dear Mayor Appelbaum and Members of the Boulder City Council:  
 
The Boulder Arts Commission (BAC) appreciates the opportunity to give input and feedback 
related to the 2014 City Council Work Plan.  The BAC sees the upcoming year as an important one 
where the City takes a stronger leadership role in defining how best to support our community 
through the creative and cultural arts.   
 
• The keystone in this effort will be the development of the City’s Community Cultural Plan.  The 

BAC will actively assist the Arts Division staff through a collaborative process involving our 
community stakeholders.  Our goal is to identify and implement specific strategies through 
which the creative and cultural arts will engage with the community to further the Council’s 
goals of economic, social and environmental sustainability in Boulder.  Boulder has a far broader 
arts community than many see and understand.  We seek ways for the City’s diversity in the 
cultural arts to come alive and be expressed, and raise the awareness of this diversity and bring 
greater benefit and enjoyment to our full community. 

 
• Within the framework of the Community Cultural Plan, the BAC continues to view the further 

establishment of a formal public art program as one of our top priorities.  Public art engages 
and enriches the community, defines a sense of place, contributes significantly to sustaining a 
healthy and socially thriving community, and enhances the economy. 

 
• Furthermore, public art in all its forms – from sculpture and fine art to dance and theatre – has 

the potential to significantly help the Civic Area become a vital and healthy place for all. 
 Exceptional arts-related programming that is constant and diverse can invigorate the area as it 
evolves in the future.  Artistic programming has the potential to make the Civic Area a “place for 
all” so it is not dominated by transient groups but used often by all Boulder citizens and its 
visitors.  The BAC will continue to find ways to continue to engage with the Civic Area planning 
team to strongly integrate the cultural arts into the Civic Area urban form. 

 
• The BAC is also developing a model to designate specific areas in Boulder as “creative 

districts.”  Currently a draft of the related policies and procedures are being vetted through the 
City’s Arts Division.  It’s been proven through the similar program administered by Colorado 
Creative Industries that such recognition helps create a sense of place that not only enhances 
the immediate neighborhood but expands its benefits out into the community, the region, and 
the state as well.  This community-driven effort is being tested for North Boulder, and it 
wouldn’t be unrealistic to apply such a model to the revitalization efforts of University Hill’s 
commercial corridor. 

 Attachment B  Page 5Packet Page  73



The BAC knows that Council’s support of the arts in not just for arts’ sake, but because the city 
acknowledges the potential of a creative, entrepreneurial group of individuals always looking for 
ways to improve its community, to make Boulder a vibrant place to live, work, and visit. 
 
We strongly urge Council members to be available and fully engaged as we develop the means to 
enrich the Boulder community through the creative cultural arts and help us design and 
implement the Community Cultural Plan.  The BAC acknowledges that newly designed creative 
cultural arts initiatives may require greater levels of funding.  We ask that Council work with us to 
identify and secure these future sources of funding, either from the City’s general fund, or through 
third-party funders, so that these new initiatives will be effective and successful. 
 
The Boulder Arts Commission thanks the Council for its continued trust in our work and strong 
support of the creative and cultural arts in Boulder and looks forward to being a strong partner in 
turning its vision into reality in anyway the BAC can.   
 
Respectfully, 

 
A. Richard Turbiak 
Chair, Boulder Arts Commission 
 
Felicia Furman, Linda Haertling, Ann Moss, Anna Salim 
Boulder Arts Commissioners 
 

Attachment B  Page 6Packet Page  74



 

 

Boulder Design Advisory Board – Letter to Council – 2014 Concerns 

BDAB wants better urban design. BDAB wants a bigger role in Sustainable Streets and Centers, the Diagonal Plaza, SODA/Civic 
Center, Boulder Junction, sub-area plans, long range plans, affordable housing, ADU’s corridor infill, and any initiatives where our 
Board can be more proactive, to help make city design more predictable, delightful, and effective. 

BDAB wants more coherent rules and better coordination between review bodies. Roadblocks to better urban design include 13 
different design guidelines, administered by several Advisory Boards that operate independently. This complexity influences 
everyone’s design thinking, planning and reviewing, and impacts applicants, neighbors, reviewers, staff, and even council. It’s 
confusing and it reinforces information “silos” that inhibit collective intelligence. We need more crosstalk between the Boards.  

Our Design Guidelines need updating. The Downtown Design Guidelines haven’t been substantively touched in over 20 years. BDAB 
is taking notes to capture our reviewing experience so we can improve the guidelines. BDAB recently coined the phrase “ransom 
note facades” to describe the chaotic facades that these now horribly dated Design Guidelines require! BDAB can update the 
Guidelines to encourage more meaningful, familiar, coherent, and sustainable urban architecture that neighbors can understand and 
welcome. All we need is council backing to proceed. 

We need more cross talk between Boards. BDAB’s architects are generalists used to working with complex teams balancing 
competing interests. Two years ago, BDAB began dialogues with the Planning & Landmarks Boards. (One meeting and two walking 
tours so far.) This year, BDAB plans to meet with the Transportation, Housing and Zoning Boards too. City design should be a 
comprehensive effort; cross talk between otherwise isolated specialists is essential. Both Blue Ribbon Commissions called for 
breaking down “silos” throughout the city. BDAB wants more cross talk between all the advisory boards so we can educate one 
another and plan better. Council direction should encourage regular (semi-annual?) meetings between the Boards, as a start. 
 
BDAB wants to proactively engage Long Range Planning before problems arise and opportunities are missed. When 
neighborhoods evolve in a piecemeal fashion, one building at a time, development seems unpredictable and neighbors experience 
NIMBY panic. When planning for a sustainable future, this kind of reactionary activism (NIMBY) becomes a roadblock to progress, 
delaying good and bad plans equally. Comprehensive physical, form-based, planning could spell out the vision and make Boulder’s 
improvements far less contentious, difficult and expensive. BDAB wants to help do long range urban planning.  
 
2014 BDAB priorities include:  

1. Update Design Guidelines. BDAB wants improved guidelines and a brief set of design principles for areas without any 
Guidelines. We also need to coordinate language between the 13 existing guidelines.  BDAB wants to leverage our 
experience to improve out toolset – to make our guidelines stronger and more helpful, to improve urban design here. 

2. Improve Inter- Board cooperation:  BDAB wants to expand cross-talk to include Planning, Landmarks, Transportation, 
Housing, and Zoning Boards, to reduce circular and contradictory reviews, breakdown Board “silos” and share knowledge 
between us, to inform all of our work.   

3. Engage long range planning: BDAB can inform area analysis and planning. Our engagement in the Sustainable Streets 
project is one way to tie Area Plans and city form together to make a meaningful and predictable whole. Engaging early on, 
in all the other major city form projects, should be part of BDAB’s regular work. We can advise city lead efforts, in the same 
way we advise individual project applicants, to improve urban form and urban design & planning. 

4. Advise Corridor Planning: BDAB supports making “Sustainable Streets and Centers” a high priority. We hope to create a 
working group with the Planning & Transportation Boards, and perhaps Affordable housing groups too, to advance this 
wonderful effort. “Streets & Centers” (we call it “The Boulder Boulevards project”) has incredible potential to advance 
Comp Plan goals in the near future, with great intelligence. Multi-modal corridor (Boulevard) design and development is 
among the most effective measures we can take to reduce GHG’s (pollution & climate change) and VMT’s (driving, 
commuting & unaffordable housing), immediately and long term. Both solve myriad problems and critical path steps 
towards making Boulder a walking and transit friendly city. BDAB wants in. 

Respectfully submitted, Fenno Hoffman, Paul Saporito, David Biek, Jeff Dawson & Michelle Lee 
Boulder Design Advisory Board, Jan 4

th
 2014 

Attachment B  Page 7Packet Page  75



 
 
Council Retreat input from the Boulder Junction Access Districts – Parking and TDM – Commissioners: 
 
Boulder Junction Implementation: 

• Focus on creating quiet zones at the several crossings within Boulder Junction 
• Seek BJAD Commission input on the Pollard site use 
• Support staff in exploring a TOD (transit oriented development) Pass from RTD; and support for 

a community wide Eco Pass 
• Listen to BJAD input and create a stronger dialogue between the boards and commissions and 

the City Council. 
 
 

Attachment B  Page 8Packet Page  76



NATIONAL WISTOPIC LANDMAPK HAuTAuc2..~A
COLORADO CHAUTAUQUA ASSOCIATION

900 BASELINc POAD, BOULDEP, Co 80302

P 303.442.3282 F 303.449.0790 WWW.CI4AUTAUQUA.COM

January 3, 2014

TO: Mayor Matt Appelbaum and Members of the Boulder City Council

RE: Council Goals for 2014

Since Council’s approval of Collaborative Stewardship of the Colorado Chautauqua: Guiding Principles for
Place Management and Fiscal Sustainability (generally referred to as “the Chautauqua Guiding Principles” on
December 4, 2012, the Colorado Chautauqua Association (“CCA” has continued to work collaboratively and
successfully with the City in a number of regards, including:

• Completion of a successful collaborative process between OSMP, P&R, historic preservation staff and

CCA with Landmarks Board approval to improve pedestrian and vehicular safety in the often-congested
main entry area of Chautauqua by creating a bus/vehicle pullout for off-street loading and unloading of
groups, particularly school groups

• The “beta test” project to create accessible restrooms to serve the Chautauqua Auditorium — the

collaborative process to date has included a working group comprised of City staff from Community
Planning and Sustainability, Open Space and Mountain Parks, Parks and Recreation, Facilities and Assets
Management and CCA staff, multiple opportunities for public input and check ins with all relevant
advisory boards

• Ongoing monthly Chautauqua Coordinating Team meetings involving City staff from OSMP, P&R,
historic preservation, Facilities and Assets Management and CCA staff

We are very appreciative of the tremendous level of communication and coordination with City staff in the
best interests of Chautauqua stewardship and we look fonvard to continuing successful collaboration in 2014.

For purposes of your planning for the year ahead, we wish to bring to your attention:

• We are working to refine our “Chautauqua 2020 Plan” — our list of the most critical investments CCA

recommends be made to the Colorado Chautauqua over the balance of this decade to position it for
sustainability and relevance in the decades to come, focusing on continuing enhancements to pedestrian

safety’, visitor experience and infrastructure, including fire safety. We have considerable concerns for
infrastructure issues within the leasehold that will require substantial financial outlays in our future, both

to bring services up to date and to protect the historic site for the future (such as undergrounding
overhead utilities as one of many fire mitigation efforts . Some of these investments should be considered
for incorporation into City capital planning or bond issuance opportunities where appropriate.

• We have started our internal thinking about renewal of the City CCA lease, which expires January 13,
2018, and look forward to creating a process with the City’ to achieve lease renewal as soon as possible, as
planning, financial and contractual uncertainty’ will continue to grow in the final years of the lease, also
impacting our many’ trade and programming partners who are affected by the lease e.g., Colorado Music
Festival).

Thank you for your consideration.

ESCAPE, ENGAGE, ELEVATE

Attachment B  Page 9Packet Page  77



Downtown Management Commission 
Response to City Council 2013 Priorities 
 
What are your top priorities within the framework of the council work program?   

•         Civic area plan  
•         Homelessness 

  
What would you like to see done to advance the Council goals?  
  
Civic area plan: 

•         Zoning and land use changes to create the active and vital space envisioned in the plan 
including loosening up density, reconsidering the height limit, allowing for micro units, etc. 

•         Creating diverse types of neighborhoods and uses 
•         Civic use pad implementation 
•         A detailed implementation plan for the civic area plan including a budget, financing strategy, 

economic benefits analysis and phasing plan 
•         Council leadership to support the implementation 
•         Activate the municipal campus with uses for the difficult to manage spaces mitigating the 

negative impacts of the transients, see below 
  
Homelessness 

•         Change the label; distinguish between the truly homeless and those in need, and focus on the 
transient population which does not need nor seek assistance 

•         Enact better legislation to mitigate the negative impacts of the transient population i.e. 
camping and sleeping in the parks; take a stand 

•         Add police presence to enforce this legislation 
•         Need better lighting in the municipal campus area 
•         Activate the space so everyone feels welcome, see above 
•         Create an overall master plan to address the homeless issue 

  
How can your board help reach the council goals?  

•         Collaborate with other boards, i.e. connections within the civic area plan with TAB 
•         Serve as task forces for council projects providing service to the council 
•         Help communicate with our constituency council’s goals and plans 
•         Do the background work and make recommendations to council 

  
The DMC created an additional question:  What City Council can do for the boards?  

•         Better communication from city council to the boards about their priorities and the role that 
board can play 

•         Use the expertise of the boards and acknowledge and integrate the board recommendations in 
their actions 

•         City Council commitment to action 
 

Attachment B  Page 10Packet Page  78



To:  Boulder City Council 
From:  Environmental Advisory Board 
Date:  January 3, 2014 
 
Thank you for this opportunity to provide the Environmental Advisory Board’s (EAB) input on 
the proposed Council work plan for 2014.  The board's feedback on the requested questions is as 
follows: 
 
(1)  What are your top priorities within the framework of the council work plan?      
  
We are excited to see that the top tier of Council priorities for 2014 falls directly in line with 
those of the EAB.  We are particularly interested to see progress on your items 1-3:  
        

1. Boulder's Energy Future- The pursuit of a city-wide sustainable energy system has 
been a top priority of the EAB for several years. The City's ability to integrate sustainable 
and renewable energy choices into our energy input mix will be a primary factor in our 
future ability to collectively reduce greenhouse gas emissions.   
2. Climate Commitment- Climate Commitment is another longstanding EAB priority, 
and one with an inherently broad scope.  In 2014, the EAB would like to see particular 
emphasis on commercial energy use reductions and market innovation.  Our second tier 
of priorities includes more specific projects such as green building, residential solar 
capacity and community food resiliency. 
3. Affordable Housing-  Housing does not fall under the traditional scope of EAB 
interests, but we believe that the creation of new affordable housing options within 
Boulder offers an opportunity to enhance the opportunity for low-carbon living in our 
city.  We would like to see this matter considered with regards to transportation 
(reduction of in-commuters and creation of public transit options), sustainable building 
practices and as a potential opportunity to reduce waste and energy consumption through 
increased density and multi-family dwellings.  

 
 
(2)  What would you like to see done that would advance the Council goals? 
   
The EAB believes that the pursuit of the Council goals will be best supported by clear and 
reliable reporting to the community, scrupulous transparency and a commitment to specific and 
actionable mid-range markers. An informed and engaged public will be a long-term key to the 
success of the prioritized programs.  We wish to highlight the following recommendations: 

 
 Conscientious and consistent goal setting- The projects prioritized by Council will be 

best served by creation of specific and actionable goal plans that contain short, medium 
and long-term components.  The reporting metrics should be specific, utilize timelines 
and adhere to regular check-ins. Council frequently already operates in this manner, but 
we wish to emphasize our interest in continuing and expanding these practices to all 
relevant projects.  We further recommend that provision of reliable and accessible 
updates on these goals to the public will create better mutual understanding and ease 
dissent.    

Attachment B  Page 11Packet Page  79



 Clear reporting- Creation and utilization of relevant and measurable metrics that clearly 
describe progress is critical to the maintenance of public support.  The metrics chosen 
should be reported on clearly at regular defined intervals.  The diverse public should be 
engaged through various formats, potentially including means such as increased use of 
social media or exploration of alternative meeting locations to discuss locally relevant 
topics. 

 Transparency- The more that timely information on progress and procedure can be 
clearly relayed to the public, the more support proposals and decisions will find, both in 
the short term and for years to come.  We see this as particularly critical with regard to 
far-reaching or controversial projects such as Boulder's Energy Future. 

 
 
(3) How can your board help reach the council goals? 
 
We wish to continue to provide feedback and remain actively engaged with staff and Council on 
projects in our priority areas.  We have also identified several other areas and projects we would 
like to further develop as a board in the upcoming year.   
 

 We want to focus our feedback to improve messaging to facilitate public understanding 
and engagement in our projects. 

 We will seek out opportunities for inter-board cooperation. We were inspired by the 
potential for positive action we saw at the joint boards retreat last summer.  We want to 
actively engage with other boards and commissions to provide them with resources and 
motivation that will advance our sustainability goals holistically across city policy. 

 We have great resources and expertise in our current member makeup to contribute to the 
market innovation project in the Climate Commitment.  We want to actively pursue these 
opportunities ourselves as well as remind staff and Council to reach out to us as a strong 
resource on this matter. 

 We wish to proactively research and remain up-to-date on carbon reduction projects in 
other municipalities, particularly with regard to successes and failures and how these 
lessons may be applicable or instructive to our process.  We want to continue to increase 
the body of knowledge and expertise available as Boulder moves forward in making 
energy future decisions. 

 We want to challenge ourselves to consider alternate meeting locations for locally 
relevant topics in order to make our discussions more accessible to those directly 
impacted. 

 
(4) Other matters we would like to see considered and prioritized in the 2014 work plan: 
 

 Environmental matters related to the flood- We would like to be involved in 
promoting environmental interests as opportunities arise in the clean-up from the 
September flood.  This will include decisions on rebuilding and revisioning infrastructure 
as well as observation of lessons learned.  In some ways, the flood offers the City a great 
opportunity to rethink the status quo and set new standards for sustainability. 

 Consideration of commercial recycling regulations- In line with our CAP priority of 
reducing commercial energy consumption, we would also like to voice our support for 

Attachment B  Page 12Packet Page  80



the review of a commercial recycling ordinance.  The commercial sector represents the 
largest single impact on both waste creation and energy use, and we feel that by targeting 
this area in 2014, the City can make large and efficient improvements.  Commercial 
energy use is already targeted as a priority, and reduction of waste from the same source 
seems to follow easily as an important corollary.  A partnership with Eco-Cycle to draft 
effective regulations and incentives on this matter is critical to our package of 
commercial sustainability strategies. 

 
 
Thank you to Council for your request for feedback.  We, as the EAB, are honored to be a part of 
the Council process and look forward to greater opportunities and communication in the future! 

Attachment B  Page 13Packet Page  81



Human Relations Commission Response to 2014 Council Retreat Questions 

 
 
1. What are your top priorities within the framework of the council work plan? 
 

 Help to move the needs of low-income people, the working poor, and struggling 
immigrants to the forefront of municipal services;  

 Ensure that the needs of this population are prioritized in City strategic planning 
processes and especially when crafting and implementing policies; and 

 Ensure that the City of Boulder is a leader in working towards Marriage Equality. 
 

2. What would you like to see done that would advance the Council Goals? 
 

 Expand efforts to engage broader community in civic life – including immigrants and 
low-income families; and 

 Preserve the entire continuum of human services offered through the City. 
 
3. How can you help the Council reach its goals? 

 Continue to report to the Council matters that adversely impact the working poor and 
struggling immigrants. 

 Work with impacted communities to provide the Council with feedback on proposed 
policy. 

 Keep informed of current relevant legislation and make recommendations to Council. 
 
4. Are there any other items that the Council should address in the coming year? 

 Help to ensure that all Boulder residents are able to experience a community that is 
“socially and economically” vibrant (Sustainability Framework) by revisiting how a 
Living Wage policy would fit in Boulder. 

  

Attachment B  Page 14Packet Page  82



Dear Mayor Applebaum and Members of the Boulder City Council, 

The Landmarks Board welcomes the opportunity at the beginning of 2014 to express our priorities to 
City Council for the coming year. In lieu of the usual yearly Letter to Council, the Landmarks Board would 
like to take the opportunity to address these priorities in response to the City Council’s questions for the 
upcoming Council Retreat. 

1. What are your top priorities within the framework of the council work plan? 
 
Within the work plan there are directly and indirectly related items that coordinate with the 
current work and mission of the Landmarks Board and would be our priorities for the year: 
 
Directly related work plan items that intersect with Landmarks Board 

• Civic Area Master Plan 
• Historic Depot 
• Energy efficiency upgrades in city-owned buildings 

 
Indirectly related work plan items that are of interest to the mission of the Landmarks Board 

• IBC Energy Code updates 
• Accessory Dwelling units (OAUs, ADUs) 
• Downtown density 

 
2. What would you like to see done that would advance the Council Goals? 

 
• Evaluation of the IBC Energy Codes with relation to historic resources and impacts on 

renovations within historic districts and with individual landmarks. Council to direct city 
staff to include historic resource building types within the current energy modeling 
analysis. 

• Evaluation of the Band Shell’s current physical condition and potential technical aspects 
of a potential relocation.  Council to direct city staff or outside consultant to write an 
assessment report of the structure’s current condition and maintenance requirements. 

• Affordable housing – analysis of potential ADUs and OAUs in historic districts and 
potential impacts on the character of these historic neighborhoods.  

• Affordable housing – inclusion of historic resources within the Inclusionary Housing 
program.   

 
3. How can your board help reach the council goals? 

 
• Formation of a Historic Resources and Energy Efficiency subcommittee of the Landmarks 

Board to better evaluate the impacts of the Prescriptive and Performance path energy 
requirements on historic properties. 

• Civic Area Master Plan/Bandshell – proactive review by the Landmarks Board of best 
practices of moving historic structures, review of cases. 

• Inclusion of a Landmarks Board member in the Uni-Hill Revitalization process to 
coordinate and anticipate impacts on historic resources in the area. 

Attachment B  Page 15Packet Page  83



• Inclusion of a Landmarks Board member on possible city subcommittee studying 
affordable housing, including increased density and ADUs/OAUs 

 
4. Are there any other items that council should address in the coming year? 

• Better coordination of joint review of projects between the Landmarks Board and 
Planning Board – possible inclusion of Landmarks Board member as ex officio Planning 
Board for projects requiring dual reviews. 

• City Council financial support for non-profits engaged in preservation activities. 
• City leadership in the coordination of energy efficiency of historic buildings in city-

owned historic resources (Municipal Building, BMOCA, Harbeck-Bergheim House, 
Pottery Lab, etc.). 

Attachment B  Page 16Packet Page  84



Open Space Mountain Parks Retreat Input - 2014 

1. What are your top Priorities within the framework of the council work plan? 
• None of the council’s priorities on the 2013 work plan relate to Open Space. 

There are a number of items relating to Open Space that are already on the work 
plan, but are lower in priority. 

2. What would you like to see done that would advance council goals? 
• See number 1. 

3. How can your Board help reach the council goals? 
• See number 1. 

4. Are there any other items that council should address in the coming year? 
• Voice and Sight 

o This issue is currently waiting council action. What is the status on 
changing these regulations? 

• OSMP will support Zero Waste by continuing to evaluate compostable dog waste 
bags on Open Space. 

• Homelessness /camping continues to be a problem on Open Space  
o Risks for fire. 
o Shelters are not open in the summer. 
o What programs are being implemented? 
o What does enforcement look like?  

• Define passive recreation.  
o Need clarification to city charter/definition? 

• Nighttime Use 
o This is on the overarching OSMP issues list from several years ago. 

• Off-trail Use 
o This is on the overarching OSMP issues list from several years ago. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Attachment B  Page 17Packet Page  85



 
 
  
January 3, 2014 
Mayor Appelbaum 
Members of the Boulder City Council 
P.O. Box 791 
Boulder, CO  80306 
 
Re:  Planning Board Recommendations for 2014 Priorities and Initiatives 
 
 
Dear Mayor Appelbaum and Members of Boulder City Council, 
 
The Planning Board appreciates the opportunity to submit this letter to Council regarding our 
recommendations for City priorities and initiatives in the upcoming year.  With a Boulder Valley 
Comprehensive Plan update beginning in a year, we ask the Council to begin thinking in advance, and 
allocate resources for staff to begin thinking in advance, about a more integrated planning process that 
both establishes a clearer long term vision for Boulder and a clearer path for achieving that vision.   
 

 

1. Addressing the Vision Gap between the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning 

Planning Board believes there is a gap that needs to be filled as part of the Comprehensive Plan update 
process between the current broad conceptual, yet vague, goals of the Comprehensive Plan and the 
detailed implementation tools such as Area Plans and zoning.  When a development project is evaluated, 
we do not always understand its long term impact on key Comprehensive Plan goals such as:  
“protect[ing] the natural environment of the Boulder Valley while fostering a livable, vibrant and 
sustainable community” or “The unique community identity and sense of place”.  The lack of 
intermediate plans and vision often means that the following types of important questions are not fully 
considered during development review: 
 
 How does a project impact these and other goals at the neighborhood, area and citywide levels?   

 How does a project or the aggregation of all new projects affect the jobs-housing balance, GHG 
emissions and sense of place?  

 How will the city look 20 or 50 years into the future?  Will the view shed be what we want?   

 Will we still have a small town feel and is that even a long term goal?   

 Will jobs and housing reach a more desirable balance and help achieve GHG emission reductions?   

 Do we want to be more proactive about affecting the rate of population and employment growth 
relative to each other or just react to trends as they develop? 

Our current development review process is usually more about making buildings rather than making 
places.  A more integrated approach as discussed above is one part of enabling a shift to placemaking.  
Placemaking should involve a meaningful dialogue with stakeholders and neighbors (business and 

CITY OF BOULDER 
Planning Board 
 
email   boulderplaningboard@bouldercolorado.gov 
web www.bouldercolorado.gov 

Attachment B  Page 18Packet Page  86



residential) if we are to be successful.  But Boulder also needs to have a community conversation about 
visual preference for the city form and consider changes to zoning so it has a greater form basis.  We also 
need better data to understand our employee characteristics – ages, family profiles (single, married, with 
or without children), income, desired housing type or context (urban vs. suburban), reasons for living or 
not living in Boulder, to better guide land-use policies that directly impact housing and employment 
growth. 
 
2014 is the right time to focus on these issues. 
 
 

2. Currently Planned Initiatives 

Boulder has made good progress addressing related issues affecting the questions identified above during 
2013 and is already prepared to address critical issues in 2014.  The Planning Board offers its support and 
some thoughts on the following efforts.   
 

a. Comprehensive Housing Strategy 

We encourage City Council to continue its work on the Comprehensive Housing Strategy in 2014. The 
City should pursue measures that allow us to create more types of housing as well as add more affordable 
housing.  To that end, we recommend changing the Boulder Revised Code to remove some of the 
impediments to ADUs, OAUs (and betterment capture in zones where they are not now allowed) , 
cooperative housing and micro-units. 
 

b. North Boulder Subcommunity Plan Revision 

The North Boulder Subcommunity Plan revision has gotten off to a successful start in 2013.  The City 
should continue the process in 2014.  But, the Plan needs to be informed by data from the September 
floods.  We need to strike a balance between waiting to know exactly how the flood maps will change and 
moving forward with the plan in a timely manner.  Perhaps the Plan revisions can be based on preliminary 
flood data so that the process is not unduly delayed. 
 

c. Resilience Planning 

The Planning Board applauds the City’s efforts to focus on resilience in planning and operations in 2014, 
including its selection as one of the first 33 resilient cities.  As the City undertakes this effort, we want to 
stress the importance of not overemphasizing the last disaster – flooding.  While flood risks are critical 
and need to be part of the process, the City should also consider and prioritize a wide array of possible 
impacts that could challenge our resilience as a community, including wildfire, electric grid vulnerability, 
epidemics, cyberthreats, energy shocks, and other issues.  In the immediate term, we believe it is 
important to continue efforts to address fire resiliency for existing homes and properties along the 
Wildland Urban Interface, a portion of the Wildland Fire Code that was not adopted in 2013. 
 

d. Sustainable Streets and Centers; East Arapahoe Plan 

In previous years’ Planning Board letters to Council, the Board has expressed a desire for “Area Plan 
Lite” to be part of the Work Plan to establish a general framework for certain high priority corridors and 
centers.  The general idea was to develop a set of tools that have a much faster and cheaper product 
development cycle that the traditional Area Plan.  This is an example of the needed planning in the gap 
between the Comprehensive Plan and the zoning code.  Because of the time and resources involved with 
Area Planning (as we do it in Boulder), development is occurring and will occur in certain high-priority 
areas before the planning can be put in place.  But planning is about being out in front of development, so 
this concept continues to be of critical importance if we want development and redevelopment of these 
areas over the next 50 years to be consistent with our goals.  The areas we have previously expressed this 
concern about include (1) East Arapahoe; (2) East Pearl; (3) 30th St and 28th Street between Arapahoe 

Attachment B  Page 19Packet Page  87



and Iris; (4) Boulder Community Hospital Broadway environs; and (5) Boulder Community Hospital 
Mapleton environs.  
 
Fortunately, the Sustainable Streets and Centers initiative is evolving in a way that it will achieve the 
intent of “Area Plan Lite”.  Continued development of the initiative and expansion of its application 
beyond the Pearl/30th Street pilot as soon as possible will allow these areas to redevelop in a manner 
consistent with general city goals and consistent with the integrated planning process we are promoting 
herein. 
 
 

3. New Recommended Initiatives 

In addition to the integrated planning thinking and continuation of existing initiatives discussed above, we 
recommend two new initiatives which deserve attention. 
 

a. Site Use Impacts and Intensity Bonuses 

In last year’s letter to Council, PB proposed that Council address site-use impacts on overall site 
emissions and inclusionary housing goals (Recommendation C in the 2013 letter to Council).  This 
continues to be an issue that would benefit from some conceptual refinement.   
Specifically, after previous Councils created intensity bonuses (FAR and height increases) to promote 
more and higher density housing units in the downtown core, followed by extending those same bonuses 
to non-residential uses, a confused incentive program has resulted.  The subsequent bonus extension to 
non-residential uses has had the effect of promoting exclusively non-residential developments over 
projects that include residential. That then reduces funding available for affordable housing as the linkage 
fees from commercial projects are substantially smaller than cash-in-lieu payments for similarly sized 
residential projects.  Additionally, non-residential uses tend to have greater GHG emissions per site than 
residential uses.   
The current circumstance with the incentives raises the question: “what is the vision”?  How much 
housing and how much commercial space are sought in the core and what do we want to the core to be 
like when built out to capacity according by current regulations?  Related to this is betterment capture – is 
the City obtaining a benefit commensurate with the value it creates by granting increased development 
intensity or is that value disproportionately accruing to the benefit of property owners?  If there are 
bonuses at all, should they be tied to attainment of specific and clearly defined City goal? 
For energy/emissions, affordable housing and betterment capture reasons, Planning Board requests that 
Council re-examine the current development intensity bonus rules in light of the impacts of different uses 
on City goals. 
 

b. Energy Districts, Microgrids, Solar Gardens 

As part of the City’s Energy Future, resiliency and upcoming Comprehensive Plan update, we 
recommend that Council direct City Staff to consider the potential for integrating innovative energy 
concepts like energy districts (like Fort Zed in Fort Collins), microgrids, solar gardens, or combined heat 
and power into the City’s planning efforts.  Current site review criteria for industrial subdivisions, mixed-
use projects or residential subdivisions do not consider or encourage the potential for some of these 
innovations, which could help the City meet energy, resiliency and economic goals.    
 
We look forward to working with you in 2014 to continue making Boulder a resilient and sustainable 
City. 
 

For the Planning Board, 
 
 
Aaron Brockett, Chair 

 

Attachment B  Page 20Packet Page  88



 
 
 
January 3, 2014 
 
Mayor Matt Appelbaum 
Members of the Boulder City Council 
P.O. Box 791 
Boulder, CO 80306 
 
Dear Mayor Appelbaum and Boulder City Council members, 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to provide PRAB’s 2014 goals and priorities for your 
consideration. 
 
Top PRAB priorities within the city council framework for 2014: 

1. Civic Area Plan 
a.  Homelessness in the area, smoking, develop programming to activate the area and 

make it welcoming to a greater portion of the community) 
2. Boulder Junction 

a. Pocket park 
3. Affordable Housing 

a. Equitable distribution of park and recreation facilities 
4. Transportation Connections 

a. Supporting a broad array of connections and types of transportation 
5. Integrated Pest Management 

a. Emerald ash borer 
6. Boulder Reservoir Site Management Plan 

 
How Can PRAB Help Reach Council Goals 

1. Involvement in the planning process 
2. Civic engagement 
3. Advocacy with the community 

 
Additional Areas Where City Council Should Focus 

1. Flood management re-prioritization in the context of Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
projects 

2. Communications 
a. How to reach farther into the community 

Attachment B  Page 21Packet Page  89



 

Draft Transportation Advisory Board (“TAB”) responses to Questions for Boards and Commissions for 

2014 Council Retreat 

 

(1)    What are your top priorities within the framework of the council work plan? 

a) Transportation Master Plan (“TMP”) update (to include future funding strategies) 

b) Access and Parking Management Strategies 

c) Community-wide Eco Pass Feasibility 

 

(2)    What would you like to see done that would advance the Council Goals? 

a) Climate action goals are in part driven by the City’s transportation policy.  We would like to see 

better integration of those goals and a focus on transportation priorities that can reduce greenhouse 

gases. 

b) TAB would like to see “smart” parking policy in the City that is better aligned with the City’s 

objectives, such as the reduction of single occupant vehicular trips.  We believe that this work relates to 

the Council’s goals for climate action, the Civic Center, and Boulder Junction implementation. 

c) TAB would like to see the relationships between land use, transportation systems, and 

greenhouse gas emissions made as transparent as possible to city policy makers.  Examining the 

experiences of international peer cities that have attained aggressive GHG emissions reductions through 

integrated transportation and land-use policies could be especially informative. 

 

(3)    How can your board help reach the council goals? 

a) TAB can help Council by vetting various proposed approaches in transportation policy as part of 

the TMP update, and evaluating those proposals in light of Council’s goals. 

b) TAB can help Council by evaluating new parking management strategies in light of Council’s 

goals to suggest ways of better aligning parking with those goals. 

Attachment B  Page 22Packet Page  90



Council Retreat Input from UHCAMC  
 
 
UHCAMC feels strongly that City Council needs to make it a priority to address 
the Hill shopping district and neighborhood issues in 2014.  The decline of the 
Hill is detrimental to the City of Boulder and University community as a 
representative of the shopping, restaurant, entertainment, and residential 
district, located directly across from the University.   
 
City Council must find a way to find a budget for the University Hill District. 
The discussions need to take place along with an appeal for potential investors/ 
grants, etc. to shore up the decline. The focus needs to be back on a creative 
and arts district for the Hill business district and the residential service 
district. 
 
The Council needs to work with our board at their meetings to allow our 
knowledge, expertise, and groundwork for this district to be heard and 
considered.  City Council asks us for our input but does not bother to consider 
it.  This needs to change with the boards as it makes them ineffective if change 
cannot happen.  As a board we also need to partner with the University and their 
curriculum and financial support, considering they are our direct market and 
neighbor. 
 
 
 

Attachment B  Page 23Packet Page  91



Water Resources Advisory Board 
Response to 2014 City Council Questions 

December 16, 2013 
 

(1) What are your top priorities with the framework of the council work plan? 
 
WRAB’s recommended top priority for 2014 is for City Council to invest in critical infrastructure, 
including projects that support resiliency, improve system reliability, address climate adaptation, 
and reduce risks to life, safety, and property.  Immediate flood recovery needs should be balanced 
with longer term strategic investment.  Investment decisions should assess benefits and costs. 
 

(2) What would you like to see done that would advance the Council Goals? 
 
Water  
 

• In partnership with other agencies, continue to evaluate climate change data and pursue 
adaptation measures to maintain the long term reliability of the city’s water supply. 
 

• Consider investment in resilient water infrastructure such as backup electric generation at 
the 63rd Street Water Treatment Facility and flood mitigation at the Boulder Canyon 
Hydroelectric facility. 

Wastewater 

• Use information learned from the September flood, including public input, to update 
wastewater master plans and the capital improvements plan.   

• Expedite investment in the city’s wastewater collection system and wastewater treatment 
facility to reduce impacts from flood events and address future regulatory requirements.   

• Continue to pursue measures to address illegal discharges to the wastewater collection 
system. 

Stormwater and Flood Management 

• Use information learned from the September flood, including public input, to update master 
plans, flood mapping studies, and the capital improvements plan to prioritize investments in 
local drainage systems and major drainageways.   

• Consider additional funding to expedite flood mitigation.  
Public Involvement, Education, and Outreach 

• Provide opportunities to educate and engage the public on water issues including 
infrastructure, drought, water supply, and flood awareness. 

• Implement measures that promote public understanding of flood risks and assist individuals 
in taking action to mitigate risks and avoid repetitive losses.  

Attachment B  Page 24Packet Page  92



 
(3) How can your board help reach the council goals? 

The WRAB can help support Council by working with the community and staff to solicit feedback and 
evaluate options prior to City Council consideration.  The WRAB can also support communication 
with the public on water related issues.   

Attachment B  Page 25Packet Page  93



	  

	  
	  
	  
	  

Better	  Boulder	  	  	  	  	  	  Vibrant.	  Liveable.	  Connected.	  	  	  	  	  	  info@betterboulder.com	  	  	  	  	  	  www.betterboulder.com	  
	  
	  

	  

January	  3,	  2014	   	  

 
Boulder	  City	  Council	  
1777	  Broadway	  Street	  
Boulder,	  CO	  80302	  

	  
	  
Dear	  Members	  of	  Council,	  
	  
We	  would	  like	  to	  congratulate	  the	  new	  and	  returning	  members	  of	  council	  on	  their	  election,	  and	  thank	  
all	  of	  council	  for	  your	  service	  to	  the	  community.	  We	  would	  also	  like	  to	  provide	  input	  for	  the	  council	  
retreat.	  
	  
Better	  Boulder	  is	  a	  newly	  formed	  organization	  created	  to	  support	  sustainable	  urbanism	  in	  Boulder.	  We	  
bring	  together	  members	  of	  the	  business	  community	  and	  environmental	  advocates	  to	  support	  changes	  
to	  Boulder’s	  land	  use	  policies.	  We	  believe	  that	  more	  well-‐designed	  density,	  combined	  with	  a	  focus	  on	  
sustainable	  transportation,	  can	  help	  Boulder	  to	  meet	  many	  of	  our	  community	  goals	  –	  reducing	  carbon	  
emissions,	  sustaining	  a	  dynamic	  economy,	  providing	  affordable	  housing,	  and	  providing	  a	  welcoming	  
community	  for	  our	  young	  people	  and	  our	  seniors.	  We	  plan	  to	  both	  weigh	  in	  on	  broad	  policy	  issues,	  and	  
to	  be	  a	  voice	  for	  sustainable	  urbanism	  in	  the	  development	  review	  process.	  
	  
With	  this	  perspective,	  we	  are	  excited	  about	  the	  potential	  outcomes	  and	  synergies	  of	  multiple	  projects	  
that	  are	  on	  the	  city’s	  agenda,	  including	  the	  Access	  Management	  and	  Parking	  Strategy,	  Boulder	  
Junction,	  the	  major	  update	  to	  the	  BVCP,	  	  the	  Comprehensive	  Housing	  Strategy,	  the	  North	  Boulder	  
Subcommunity	  Plan,	  the	  Hill	  Revitalization	  Plan,	  the	  East	  Arapahoe	  Corridor	  Plan,	  Sustainable	  Streets	  
and	  Centers,	  and	  the	  TMP	  Update.	  	  
	  
We	  would	  ask	  you	  to	  consider	  a	  number	  of	  perspectives	  as	  you	  set	  your	  2014	  policy	  agenda.	  
	  

1. As	  the	  city	  looks	  at	  issues	  like	  the	  BVCP	  update,	  the	  Sustainable	  Streets	  and	  Centers	  	  project,	  
the	  East	  Arapahoe	  plans,	  and	  the	  future	  of	  Boulder	  Junction,	  be	  willing	  to	  think	  boldly	  about	  
land	  use	  changes.	  This	  is	  an	  opportunity	  to	  look	  at	  both	  bringing	  additional	  housing	  and	  
economic	  activity	  to	  the	  community,	  and	  to	  reshaping	  areas	  into	  far	  more	  vibrant,	  pedestrian	  
friendly	  neighborhoods.	  

	  
2. We	  support	  the	  suggestion	  that	  the	  city	  look	  at	  loosening	  code	  restrictions	  that	  have	  made	  it	  

so	  difficult	  for	  people	  to	  share	  their	  houses,	  whether	  through	  cooperative	  housing	  or	  
accessory	  dwelling	  units,	  cottages,	  and	  granny	  flats.	  We	  would	  encourage	  you	  to	  be	  willing	  to	  
experiment	  in	  this	  area	  .	  Don’t	  insist	  on	  rules	  that	  try	  to	  prevent	  every	  conceivable	  problem	  –	  
instead	  create	  some	  reasonable	  rules,	  monitor	  how	  they	  work,	  and	  make	  adjustments	  if	  
necessary.	  

Attachment C  page 1Packet Page  94



	  

	  
	  
	  
	  

Better	  Boulder	  	  	  	  	  	  Vibrant.	  Liveable.	  Connected.	  	  	  	  	  	  info@betterboulder.com	  	  	  	  	  	  www.betterboulder.com	  
	  
	  

	  

	  
3. On	  the	  big	  scale,	  we	  need	  to	  make	  infill	  more	  attractive	  for	  development	  than	  sprawl.	  In	  

order	  to	  achieve	  this,	  we	  need	  a	  process	  that	  does	  not	  add	  time,	  uncertainty	  and	  expense	  to	  
the	  process	  for	  infill.	  We	  also	  need	  to	  capitalize	  on	  one	  of	  the	  great	  advantages	  of	  infill	  –	  that	  
many	  needs	  can	  be	  met	  without	  driving,	  and	  we	  don’t	  need	  as	  much	  money	  spent	  on	  parking	  
and	  roads.	  Let's	  not	  let	  minimum	  parking	  requirements	  get	  in	  the	  way	  of	  valuable	  infill	  
projects	  that	  could	  serve	  our	  community	  
	  

4. When	  looking	  at	  climate	  goals,	  remember	  that	  what	  really	  matters	  is	  how	  much	  we	  can	  
reduce	  GHG	  emissions	  per	  capita.	  Diverting	  growth	  and	  associated	  emissions	  outside	  of	  the	  
city	  does	  nothing	  for	  climate.	  GHGs	  are	  globally	  mixed	  gases	  –	  it	  does	  not	  matter	  whether	  
they	  are	  emitted	  in	  Boulder	  or	  elsewhere.	  Denser	  land	  use	  will	  both	  reduce	  per	  capita	  
transportation	  emissions,	  but	  also	  will	  lead	  to	  more	  people	  living	  in	  smaller	  units	  in	  
multifamily	  housing,	  reducing	  building	  related	  emissions.	  And,	  concentrated,	  denser	  areas	  of	  
employment	  lead	  to	  far	  higher	  alternative	  mode	  shares	  and	  lower	  per	  capita	  transportation	  
emissions	  from	  employees.	  	  

	  
Thanks	  for	  the	  opportunity	  to	  comment.	  We	  look	  forward	  to	  working	  with	  you	  in	  2014.	  
	  
Yours	  Sincerely,	  
	  
The	  Better	  Boulder	  Steering	  Committee	  
	  
Will	  Toor,	  co-‐chair	  
Ken	  Hotard,	  co-‐chair	  
Ed	  Byrne	  
Shannon	  Cox	  Baker	  
Bill	  Holicky	  
Michael	  Leccesse	  
Mimi	  Mather	  
Gavin	  McMillan	  
Morgan	  Rogers	  McMillan	  
Sue	  Prant	  
Mark	  Ruzzin	  
Zane	  Selvans	  
Adrian	  Sopher	  
Stephen	  Sparn	  
John	  Tayer	  
	   	  

Attachment C  page 2Packet Page  95



Expanding Horizons
CHanging pErspECtivEs
touCHing LivEs

Attachment C  page 3Packet Page  96



Attachment C  page 4Packet Page  97



ere’s a heads up regarding the arts in Boulder. The 
Dairy Center for the Arts has not only become an 

anchor for some of Boulder’s best artists and performers, 
but also a new force in expanding the arts that Boulder 
experiences. We have built a foundation that will make 2014 
the most exciting year of programming ever offered by The 
Dairy.

This year’s artistic offerings have stimulated new conver-
sations about The Dairy, expanded coverage into Denver 
media, attracted new visitors to discover our live perform-
ances, and has proven one doesn’t need to go to Denver to 
experience the highest quality of artistic expression. The 
Boedecker Cinema at The Dairy has been written about in 
a new book, and has been described by some as the “gem” 
among arts cinema venues nationwide.

I love hearing the phrase that is becoming so familiar 
when I tell someone I’m with The Dairy – “I love The Dairy.” 
But I am dismayed to still too often hear – “What’s The 
Dairy?” I am dismayed because that means those people 
have been missing out on all that happens here, from 
theater to dance to gallery exhibits to great cinema and 
very special community events.  I can’t help but wonder if 
they’re driving to Denver for arts entertainment avail-
able right here in Boulder. Or are they simply missing arts 
experiences in their lives altogether?

In 2014, I am committed to expanding awareness of The 
Dairy and stimulating interest in both the entertainment 
value and the life enhancement value offered by all that 
happens here.  As you will read in this report, The Dairy has 
in many ways become the soul of this community; where 
developmentally challenged experience stardom, immigrant 
families experience a new sense of belonging, thousands of 
students learn music and dance, local and regional artists 
are discovered, the best in arts cinema is enjoyed, and the 
non-profit community gains new awareness. 

Next year at this time I’ll be reporting on the success of a 
pilot program being initiated in 2014 called Kids At The 
Dairy, providing multi-arts education for pre-school and 
kindergarten kids in our Title One schools. It is the most 
important educational program ever initiated by The Dairy 
and will play a major role in narrowing what the Commu-
nity Foundation has identified as “the achievement gap” in 
Boulder.

There is so much to be excited about regarding this past 
year at The Dairy as well as the year ahead. But for now, 
simply know that the staff and board of The Dairy are doing 
everything we can to make certain you feel about us the 
same way so many others do, expressed by those wonderful 
four words – “I love The Dairy.” 

Bill Obermeier 
Executive Director

a letter 
from tHE ExECutivE dirECtor

H

Cover Photo - Dancer: Matthew Helms. Photo courtesy of Boulder Ballet

www.thedairy.orgAttachment C  page 5Packet Page  98



omeone recently asked “What would life in Boulder be like without 
The Dairy?” A quick look at the numbers provides the best answer to 

that question.

In 2013, The Dairy Center for the Arts has:

Maintained offices for 11 arts organizations• 
Supported 14 Resident Performance organizations• 
Provided theaters for:• 

112 Resident Organization performances• 
116 performances by non-resident organizations• 
18 performances produced by The Dairy Presents• 

Given Boulder diverse arts experiences and entertainment, including:• 
44 dance performances• 
167 live theater performances• 
 8 music performances• 
9 comedy performances• 
27 art gallery exhibitions• 
1200 arts movies, including nationally recognized Science on • 
Screens

Hosted dance classes for 10 organizations• 
Provided education and rehearsal  studios for: • 

Over 1,200 ballet students• 
Over 1,000 music students• 

Hosted 65 special events for businesses, organizations, and  • 
non-profits in our community

Without The Dairy, over 200,000 experiences during the year wouldn’t 
happen. Dozens of artists and arts organizations would not have a profes-
sional environment to display and perform their work. Nearly 2,500 kids 
wouldn’t have the learning experiences offered at The Dairy. And Boulder 
wouldn’t have an arts cinema that has been acclaimed as one of the “arts 
cinema gems” in the country.

It’s hard to imagine life in Boulder without The Dairy! And there’s more 
to the story of The Dairy, which we’re highlighting in this 2013 year-end 
report.

WHat WouLd LifE BE 
LiKE WitHout
tHe DaIrY?

S

numBErs aDD up to
ONe IMPOrtaNt PlaCe FOr BOUlDer

www.thedairy.org Attachment C  page 6Packet Page  99



“building understanding, respect, and 
friendship across cultures through  
educational and intercultural  
opportunities”

tHE dairY fEELs 
LiKE HOMe
our immigrant CommunitY 
ContinuEs to Expand

INterCaMBIO
artful Bridges

Boulder County continues to grow in its diversity. 
As an example, today one in three kids here is a 
person of color. Our immigrant community con-
tinues to expand. Nearly 33,000 of us were born 
outside the United States.  This is why Intercam-
bio, with its mission to “build understanding, 
respect, and friendship across cultures through 
educational and intercultural opportunities,”  is 
so important to our community. 

In partnership with Intercambio, The Dairy 
launched the Artful Bridges to Community 
program offering a series of workshops and 
art-making sessions that culminated in a month-
long celebration of diversity and immigration. 
Intercambio clients gathered for weekly work-
shops and collaborated with instructors to create 
artwork that depicts their stories of leaving their 
homes and moving to America. Work was repre-
sentative of many different artistic mediums, and 
concluded with a gallery exhibition at The Dairy 
showcasing their creations.

Today the program has expanded to include 
Saturday morning Zumba classes for Intercambio 
clients, art projects for kids served by Intercam-
bio, and the video recording of personal stories 
regarding the challenges of immigrating to 
America.

The Dairy has not only enriched the lives of im-
migrant families, but has created a connection to 
the community through art and personal expres-
sion. Here all people can find new perspectives 
on life expressed in art, dance, theater, music, 
and film. The Dairy feels like “home” for many 
people who might otherwise not enjoy that 
important sense of community.

tHErE is aLWaYs somEtHing 
going on, WitH tHE sound 
of danCE and musiC LEssons 
transforming our offiCE into 
a trUe artS eNvIrONMeNt.

- KEvin sHuCK, BouLdEr pHiLHarmoniC 
orCHEstra

www.thedairy.orgAttachment C  page 7Packet Page  100



it is a grEat EnvironmEnt of all 
kINDS OF artIStS doing tHEir WorK, 
inCLuding us!

- rosEY WatErs, imagination maKErs tHEatEr Co.

18%

tHE dairY MaDe Me PrOUD
here were many tears of joy for people of 
all ages who are living with physical and 

mental challenges when Imagine! presented 
their annual theatrical performance at The 
Dairy. The stars of the show were themselves 
clients of Imagine! and each experienced a 
sense of accomplishment and stardom not 
typical in their lives.

Before that performance, there were many 
smiles as the featured individuals saw the art 
they had created themselves displayed in all 
three galleries at The Dairy. And for the weeks 
that followed, visitors to The Dairy marveled 
at the artistic talent on display created by 
people dealing with even the most severe 
physical challenges. 

When our Imagine! month at The Dairy was 
finished, more art had been sold to patrons 
than in any other exhibit in our galleries 
during the entire year. We loved hearing the 
familiar phrase from Imagine! families, sup-
porters, and staff – “It made me proud.”

The fact is, Imagine! you made us proud!

In October the Dairy introduced a new monthly series called the art 
of living that gives local non-profits an opportunity to provide the 
community with valuable information about their cause, while also 
raising money. this unique collaboration between human services 
and arts non-profits received a grant from excel Corporation.

the series kicked off with a compelling documentary and panel dis-
cussion hosted by Safehouse.  Other non-profits already scheduled 
for our  2014 art of living series include voices For Children, truCare, 
and the YWCa.

Qibus ea diae volor sequas de dolo velibus-
ciis sitia ditio. Tio. Itat raes doluptatur, sun-
tinvenis modis doluptate magnim volupta 
dit iniam quo ipidendit, verehent quis enis 
elendem que ium et dolenis dolorrum.

tHE art of Living CELEBratEs NON PrOFItS

t

www.thedairy.org Attachment C  page 8Packet Page  101



“If we can share our love of dance, and we know the benefits of dance and 
music physically, emotionally and socially – the world becomes much more 
tolerable and compassionate for all those affected by Parkinson’s.” 
                                                      — Dance for Parkinson’s trainee and teacher

EmpHasizing danCing ratHEr tHan tHErapY

tHe POWer of 
danCE

his isn’t an event. It’s a class. And it 
happens weekly at The Dairy. Dance 

for Parkinson’s integrates movement from 
modern and theater dance, ballet, folk 
dance, tap, improvisation, and choreo-
graphic repertory. Each weekly class is an 
aesthetic experience that uses the ele-
ments of narrative, imagery, live music and 
community to develop artistry and grace 
while addressing such Parkinson’s-specific 
concerns as balance, flexibility, coordina-
tion, isolation, and depression.

The classes engage the participants’ minds 
and bodies, and create an enjoyable, social 
environment that emphasizes dancing 
rather than therapy. How significant this 
class is to people’s lives is best described 
by  a participant and a teacher:

“I am awed by the power of dance to 
transform and alleviate pain. Despite the 
steady advance of Parkinson’s, we show 
up. We move. We laugh. We share our best 
selves.” 
           — Dance for Parkinson’s participant

danCE FOr ParkINSONS

t

www.thedairy.org

Photo by Amber Star Merkens. Used courtesy of Mark Morris Dance Group/Brooklyn 
Parkinson Group’s Dance for PD ® program, Brooklyn, NY.)

Attachment C  page 9Packet Page  102



he Dairy introduced Comedy Night in 2013 
which continues to grow in popularity. Featur-

ing some of the best comics from Denver and the 
region, each Comedy Showcase offers a different line-
up each month.  As described in Denver’s Westword 
Magazine, “The comedy scene in Boulder was once 
a smoldering heap of rubble, and now it’s a living, 
vibrant thing.”

In October, The Dairy featured for the first time a live 
podcast recording of the special Halloween Comedy 
Showcase hosted by the popular Werewolf Radar. In 
2014 The Dairy will introduce the world to a new 
production by Boulder’s own Hippieman, producing 
and hosting the premier performance of his “Plan for 
America” national tour.

somEtHing to laUgH aBOUt

sit doWn to CoLorado’s BeSt stand up

t

www.thedairy.org Attachment C  page 10Packet Page  103



18%

poLLY’s CHaLLEngE
is a BouLdEr SUCCeSS storY

ust ask well-known Boulder art-
ist Polly Addison and she’ll tell 

you how important The Dairy is to 
the Boulder Community. So important 
she suggested we issue a challenge 
to Boulder. If we could raise $25,000, 
she would match it. Keeping the doors 
open and improving our facilities isn’t 
possible without the generous support 
of the Boulder community. With Polly’s 
help in helping tell that story, Boulder 
responded with contributions totaling 
$56,201.60.  With Polly’s match of the 
first $25,000, her challenge resulted in 
$81,201.60 for The Dairy. 

Qibus ea diae volor sequas de dolo velibus-
ciis sitia ditio. Tio. Itat raes doluptatur, sun-
tinvenis modis doluptate magnim volupta 
dit iniam quo ipidendit, verehent quis enis 
elendem que ium et dolenis dolorrum.

all OF US at tHe DaIrY, aND OUr 14 
reSIDeNt artS OrgaNIzatIONS, SaY a 
BIg tHaNk YOU tO POllY; aND tO all 
OF YOU WHO SO geNerOUSlY  
reSPONDeD tO SUPPOrt tHe art 
tHat HaPPeNS Here all Year lONg. 

J

www.thedairy.orgAttachment C  page 11Packet Page  104



i LovE tHE idEa of a viBrant MUltI-
DISCIPlINarY artS CeNter at tHE HEart 
of our CommunitY.  BEing a part of suCH 
a pLaCE maKEs BouLdEr a BEttEr pLaCE 
to LivE.

- stEpHEn WEitz, BouLdEr EnsEmBLE 
tHEatEr CompanY

sCiEnCE ON SCreeN
The Boedecker Theater at The Dairy Center for the Arts 
was  one of only 14 Science on Screen grants issued this 

year by the Coolidge Corner Theatre, with support from the 
Alfred P. Sloan Foundation. 

Science on Screen is an innovative series pairing films about 
technology, science, and medicine with lively introductions from 
experts in those fields. The experts’ introductions provide an un-
expected jumping-off point for enjoying movies from their point 
of view and field of expertise. Whether classic or quirky, these 
entertaining science/movie mash-up events integrate film and 
science in a way that appeals to students, teachers, and other 
community members. 

As part of this series, The Dairy hosted a fundraiser for flood 
victims that featured the movie The Perfect Storm preceded by 
a presentation by two UCAR meteorologists who provided fas-
cinating insight into Boulder’s 100-year event. Over $4,000 was 
raised, including matching money from Elevations Credit Union.

Receives National Recognition

S

www.thedairy.org Attachment C  page 12Packet Page  105



staYs aHEad of tECHnoLogY CurvE
s the cinema industry changes technology, theaters everywhere must adapt or go by the wayside. For the Boedecker Cin-
ema to be able to continue to show any movie available, it must switch to Digital Cinema Initiatives-compliant equip-

ment. In October, a movie trivia night fundraiser was hosted at The Dairy to begin raising the money required to upgrade to 
the DCI system. 

Fundraising began and ended in one night, with nearly $25,000 raised and matched by the Boedecker Foundation. The Boe is 
now purchasing the new projection system, which Glenn Webb, The Boe’s manager says, “Will keep the Boe fabulous!”

BoEdECKEr CINeMa 

a

www.thedairy.orgAttachment C  page 13Packet Page  106



Look what a simple $100 contribution buys:

We’re PrOUD of tHE organizations tHat Call tHe DaIrY HOMe

ased on 2012 data from Americans For The 
Arts, The Dairy generated nearly $11 mil-

lion in economic benefit for the city of Boulder, 
in addition to the quality of life benefits experi-
enced by the citizens of Boulder.  Your support of 
The Dairy also generates an important return on 
investment. 

did YOU KnoW
B

3RD LAW DANCE / THEATER COMPANY 

BOULDER BALLET 

BOULDER COUNTY ARTS ALLIANCE 

BOULDER ENSEMBLE THEATRE COMPANY 

BOULDER INTERNATIONAL FRINGE FESTIVAL 

BOULDER PHILHARMONIC ORCHESTRA 

CENTERSTAGE THEATRE COMPANY 

ECOARTS CONNECTIONS 

HELANDER DANCE THEATER

IMAGINATION MAKERS THEATER COMPANY 

ONE BIG YES PRODUCTIONS 

PARLANDO SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS 

STORIES ON STAGE 

UPSTART CROW THEATER COMPANY

Opens our doors to 14 people.• 

Provides 2.5 arts experiences.• 

Supports 1.5 days of affordable rent to a  • 
local arts organization.

Yields a $714 impact on the local economy. • 

       

THE DAIRY CENTER FOR THE ARTS
J U LY  1 9  -  A U G U S T  1 6 ,  2 0 13
A R T I S T S  T A L K :   F R I D A Y ,  J U LY  1 9 ,  4 - 5  P M
OPENING RECEPTION: FRIDAY, JULY 19, 5-6:30 PM
2 6 T H  &  WA L N U T  S T R E E T  |  B O U L D E R ,  C O  8 0 3 0 2  |  3 0 3 . 4 4 0 . 7 8 2 6  |  T H E D A I RY. O R G

DESCANT  OBERT MCCAULEY CLEMENT   COLBY

groWing in rECognition
he McMahon Gallery, In Focus Gallery, Polly Addison Exhibition Space, and The MacMillan Family 
Lobby Gallery exhibit the work of more than eighty regional, national and international artists in 

eighteen juried shows each year, and are growing in recognition throughout Colorado, nationally, and 
internationally.

tHE dairY gallerIeS

t

www.thedairy.org Attachment C  page 14Packet Page  107



n behalf of our entire Board of Directors at The Dairy, 
I want to say “Thank you” to the people of Boulder for 

valuing the important role the arts play in our lives and sup-
porting The Dairy as the place where art happens. 

Looking back twenty years to those early days when the old 
Watts-Hardy Dairy began to evolve into an arts center one 
can’t help but be impressed by the commitment so many 
people showed to making sure Boulder arts organizations 
had a place to flourish. I hope all past board members, sup-
porters, and staff feel thanked every day they see what The 
Dairy has become. 

2013 has been an exciting year for The Dairy with new 
leadership, new vision, expanded programming, innovative 

partnerships, growing recognition across the entire Front 
Range, and more visitors than ever enjoying the diverse arts 
experiences The Dairy makes available nearly every day of 
the year.

We are all looking forward to the year ahead and to The 
Dairy making an even greater impact on life in Boulder. It’s 
hard to imagine this community without The Dairy Center 
for the Arts.

Sincerely,

Richard Polk \ President of the Board of Directors

tHanK YOU, BouLdEr
O

Board OF dirECtors

KREIGHTON BEIGER 

SUE DEANS 

FELICIA FURMAN

AMY HARTMAN

ROB HEIDER 

ROY HOLLOWAY 

GEORGE KARAKEHIAN 

CATHERINE MOLL 

SHARON NEHLS 

RICHARD POLK

RICHARD REEVES 

DUSTY REID 

STEPHANIE RUDY 

ANITA SCHWARTZ 

Attachment C  page 15Packet Page  108



Being at the dairy means we’re part of a larger arts 
community, collaborating with other organizations, work-
ing toward common goals together, having our audiences 
crossover.
                     travis LaBerge, parlando school for the arts

Attachment C  page 16Packet Page  109



Attachment C  page 17Packet Page  110



The Dairy Center for the Arts provides the Boulder  

community diverse opportunities to create, learn and  

participate in high quality performing and visual arts experiences.

26th & Walnut street
Boulder, Colorado

tHE dairY CEntEr for tHE arts

box office 303.444.7328   
www.thedairy.org

Attachment C  page 18Packet Page  111



Dear Boulder City Council: 

Recycling is one of the fastest, cheapest ways to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and therefore we are 
requesting you consider an ordinance requiring businesses to recycle as you plan your 2014 agenda at 
your retreat this January.  Boulder’s Climate Action Plan recognizes waste reduction as an important 
part of achieving our climate goals.  Yet we are not even halfway toward our goal of diverting 85% of our 
waste from landfills by 2017.  We’re lagging because we don’t have the full participation of the entire 
community. Boulder single-family homes, schools and government are recycling very well.  And some 
businesses are going for Zero Waste, but businesses overall in Boulder recycled only 17% of their waste 
in 2011.  Boulder businesses produce three times the amount of trash going to the landfill as single 
family homes.   

The city government and Eco-Cycle have offered education and economic incentives to get businesses to 
recycle for more than 30 years, but the commercial recycling rate isn’t improving.  It is time for more 
substantive action if we want to reach our zero waste and climate goals.  We need to join the 20% of the 
nation that lives in communities where recycling is required for businesses, including communities like 
San Francisco, Portland, OR and Madison, WI, which are diverting  60% to 80% of their waste from the 
landfill due in part to their business recycling requirement. If we doubled the business recycling rate in 
Boulder, we could greatly increase our diversion rate and eliminate more than 20,000 metric tons of 
CO2e every year.  To put this number in perspective, all new solar installations in Boulder in 2010 and 
2011 eliminated only 3,000 metric tons of CO2e each year.    

Several Boulder businesses have publicly supported a stronger regulatory approach, including GoLite, 
Alfalfa’s and Rally Software.  On October 9, 2013 the Daily Camera printed an opinion piece by 
Western’s Frank Bruno and Eco-Cycle’s Eric Lombardi calling for a mandatory commercial recycling 
ordinance.  Such an ordinance will level the playing field, ensuring that every business does its part to 
help reduce greenhouse gases.   

Please take this important step to reducing our climate impact--include an ordinance to require 
businesses to recycle in your 2014 work plan. 

Sincerely, 

Allyn Feinberg, 

Eco-Cycle Board President 

Attachment C  page 19Packet Page  112



January 7, 2014 
 
To the Boulder City Council: 
 
I would like to recommend a topic for your consideration at your 2014 Council 
retreat, which is to undertake a planning project that integrates the various current 
and forecasted plans and policies related to housing, jobs and transportation. For 
some years now, the city has been pursuing affordable housing, alternate modes of 
transportation and economic promotion of Boulder, each as individual topics, with 
their own set of policies, budgets, and advocates. When the inevitable conflicts arise 
among these topics, there is no way to resolve them to the advantage of the 
community – we just end up with winners and losers. 
 

• The city needs a comprehensive housing plan, not just the single focus on 
affordability that has led to high density apartment projects that are of little 
interest to families with children, while paying limited attention to the 
opportunities to make more economically and architecturally diverse 
neighborhoods. 

 
• The city needs a comprehensive transportation master plan that can address 

the levels of congestion that high density housing projects will create, and 
that addresses the issues related to the huge and increasing number of         
in-commuting workers that Boulder sees every day. 

 
• The city needs to acknowledge the impact that more and more jobs are 

having on the community, and develop policies that address the pressure 
that jobs put on housing costs and the transportation infrastructure.  

 
We are in a reactive mode of development that needs to be more objective. We hear 
there is a shortage of Class A office space, so every building downtown is a target for 
additional floors; we need more housing for the additional jobs that we are creating, 
so we approve massive, multi-unit development that overloads the streets, libraries, 
rec centers and fire and police services. And many of us who have lived in Boulder 
and worked hard for a livable community are wondering how we got here. Is this 
relatively ad hoc approach going to leave us with a Boulder that none of us 
recognize and that none of us wanted? 
 
In the mid-90’s, the city council wrestled with many of these same issues through 
what was called the Integrated Planning Project. The most important aspect of this 
project was that it asked everyone in the community that could be reached in an 
extensive outreach process, to identify what kind of community they wanted 
Boulder to be, and what things they would trade off to create that community. If 
they wanted more affordable housing, would they limit jobs? If they wanted less 
congested streets, would they limit development?  
 

Attachment C  page 20Packet Page  113



We need to undertake this type of process again, particularly the part where the 
citizens of the community are asked to weigh in on our desired future. We citizens 
have demonstrated that we are willing to make hard choices, such as taxing 
ourselves locally to limit climate change; to tax ourselves to address our 
transportation problems; to tax ourselves to put more money into government 
services that we all benefit from. All of this will be for little good, if we continue 
down this path of disintegrated development. It will not create a better place, it will 
just be more. 
 
Please consider this as a high priority at your upcoming retreat. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Allyn Feinberg 
 
 

Attachment C  page 21Packet Page  114



Letter	  to	  City	  Council	  Members	  on	  Inclusion	  of	  North	  Boulder	  in	  2014	  Retreat	  
Priorities	  

	   1	  

January	  3,	  2014	  
	  
Dear	  City	  Council	  Members:	  
	  
As	  you	  prepare	  for	  your	  2014	  retreat,	  we	  ask	  you	  to	  again	  remember	  North	  Boulder,	  
the	  way	  you	  have	  a	  number	  of	  times	  over	  the	  past	  year.	  	  	  For	  your	  2013	  retreat,	  we	  
asked	  you	  to	  support	  reopening	  the	  North	  Boulder	  Subcommunity	  plan	  to	  examine	  
those	  aspects	  of	  the	  plan	  that	  need	  re-‐visioning.	  	  We	  are	  very	  pleased	  that	  you	  have	  
directed	  the	  planning	  staff	  to	  conduct	  such	  a	  targeted	  review	  of	  the	  North	  Broadway	  
village	  center	  and	  corridor.	  	  That	  review	  has	  begun;	  we	  are	  optimistic	  about	  what	  
we	  have	  seen	  and	  participated	  in	  so	  far,	  and	  we	  ask	  you	  to	  keep	  monitoring	  its	  
progress.	  We	  are	  especially	  interested	  in	  finding	  synergistic	  solutions	  to	  the	  flood	  
and	  development	  challenges	  on	  the	  west	  side	  of	  Broadway	  between	  Violet	  and	  
Yarmouth.	  
	  
In	  last	  year’s	  letter,	  we	  also	  urged	  the	  development	  of	  more	  cultural	  amenities	  in	  
North	  Boulder.	  We	  are	  encouraged	  by	  your	  support	  for	  a	  small	  storefront	  library	  at	  
Westview	  that	  will	  be	  an	  important	  step	  in	  bringing	  much-‐needed	  library	  services	  to	  
North	  Boulder.	  	  It	  would	  also	  serve	  as	  a	  test	  of	  how	  the	  community	  could	  support	  
the	  full	  service	  branch	  library/community	  center	  promised	  in	  the	  original	  
Subcommunity	  plan.	  	  We	  are	  delighted	  that	  Boulder	  Housing	  Partners	  has	  made	  
available	  the	  space	  at	  Westview,	  and	  that	  the	  Council,	  Library	  Commission	  and	  
Library	  staff	  have	  made	  full	  funding	  and	  operation	  of	  our	  corner	  library	  a	  priority.	  	  
We	  look	  forward	  to	  its	  opening,	  planned	  for	  March	  2014.	  	  
	  
We	  see	  our	  new	  corner	  library	  as	  becoming	  an	  important	  hub	  for	  neighborhood	  
communication	  and	  activity,	  much	  as	  other	  library	  facilities	  throughout	  the	  county	  
serve	  this	  function.	  	  In	  addition	  to	  basic	  library	  services,	  the	  corner	  library,	  however	  
small,	  could	  be	  an	  important	  facilitation	  for	  communication	  among	  neighbors	  and	  
businesses	  on	  developments	  in	  North	  Boulder.	  	  
	  
We	  as	  the	  North	  Broadway	  Community	  Forum	  and	  other	  North	  Boulder	  neighbors	  
frankly	  need	  help	  in	  doing	  the	  task	  we	  have	  set	  ourselves:	  	  Being	  a	  positive	  voice	  for	  
North	  Boulder	  community	  interests	  and	  concerns.	  	  This	  means	  early	  engagement	  
with	  the	  City	  and	  private	  developers	  and	  organizations,	  effective	  monitoring	  of	  
developments	  throughout	  the	  City	  that	  affect	  our	  community,	  and	  communication	  
with	  all	  of	  our	  North	  Boulder	  neighbors	  about	  those	  developments.	  We	  have	  tried	  
using	  a	  Facebook	  page,	  Nextdoor,	  and	  the	  various	  neighborhood	  list	  serves,	  such	  as	  
the	  Holiday	  Neighborhood	  list	  serve.	  	  We	  have	  made	  progress,	  but	  each	  of	  these	  
communication	  vehicles	  has	  significant	  limitations.	  Our	  information	  gathering	  and	  
communication	  efforts	  are	  sporadic,	  fragmented,	  very	  labor	  intensive	  and	  by	  no	  
means	  reach	  all	  of	  our	  North	  Boulder	  neighbors	  and	  businesses	  consistently.	  	  	  Our	  
neighbors	  and	  businesses	  all	  support	  constructive	  engagement.	  	  And	  we	  are	  all	  very	  
busy	  people	  with	  limited	  energy	  and	  technological	  capabilities.	  
	  

Attachment C  page 22Packet Page  115



Letter	  to	  City	  Council	  Members	  on	  Inclusion	  of	  North	  Boulder	  in	  2014	  Retreat	  
Priorities	  

	   2	  

We	  know	  you	  support	  community	  efforts	  at	  constructive	  engagement.	  	  We’d	  like	  to	  
request	  help	  from	  the	  City	  communications	  staff	  in	  designing	  a	  “one-‐stop”	  
information	  vehicle	  for	  the	  North	  Boulder	  community.	  	  Our	  intention	  would	  be	  to	  
create	  a	  vehicle	  that	  would	  facilitate	  the	  common	  goals	  we	  believe	  both	  we	  and	  the	  
City	  share:	  Effective	  community	  outreach,	  generating	  support	  for	  positive	  initiatives,	  
disseminating	  important	  information	  about	  developments	  affecting	  our	  North	  
Boulder	  neighborhood.	  Such	  assistance	  could	  be	  help	  with	  a	  website	  that	  would	  link	  
to	  developments	  throughout	  the	  City.	  	  City	  assistance	  could	  perhaps	  also	  be	  funding	  
assistance,	  technical	  assistance	  and	  guidance,	  affirmative	  notifications	  of	  relevant	  
meetings,	  proposals	  and	  decisions.	  We	  believe	  a	  one-‐stop	  communication	  vehicle	  
tailored	  to	  our	  community’s	  needs	  could	  not	  only	  make	  our	  lives	  a	  lot	  easier,	  but	  the	  
City’s	  as	  well.	  Our	  thinking	  is	  that,	  subject	  to	  Library	  approval,	  this	  might	  be	  a	  great	  
use	  for	  one	  of	  the	  public	  computer	  terminals	  at	  the	  new	  Westview	  corner	  library.	  	  
	  
Another	  cultural	  amenity	  action	  that	  we	  requested	  last	  year	  that	  would	  greatly	  
benefit	  our	  community	  is	  the	  designation	  by	  the	  City	  Council	  of	  North	  Boulder	  as	  an	  
official	  Arts	  District.	  We	  applaud	  that	  plans	  for	  such	  a	  designation	  are	  making	  
progress	  and	  we	  are	  pleased	  to	  be	  active	  participants	  in	  this	  process.	  	  We	  feel	  that	  
there	  will	  be	  a	  great	  deal	  of	  positive	  neighborhood	  support	  for	  a	  NoBo	  Arts	  District,	  
and	  that	  the	  creation	  and	  support	  of	  such	  a	  district	  will	  be	  very	  valuable	  in	  bringing	  
together	  what	  is	  probably	  Boulder’s	  most	  diverse	  large	  neighborhood.	  
	  
On	  the	  issue	  of	  concentration	  of	  affordable	  housing	  in	  North	  Boulder,	  we	  do	  want	  to	  
commend	  the	  Council	  and	  the	  Housing	  staff	  for	  making	  some	  efforts	  to	  address	  this	  
issue.	  We	  feel	  that	  it	  is	  important	  to	  allow	  thoughtful	  neighborhood	  review	  of	  by	  
right	  developments	  that	  are	  primarily	  affordable	  housing.	  	  We	  do	  not	  think	  that	  it	  is	  
acceptable	  or	  prudent	  for	  the	  City	  to	  allow	  these	  developments	  to	  be	  permitted	  
without	  a	  reasonable	  neighborhood	  impact	  review	  process.	  	  We	  are	  pleased	  that	  the	  
neighborhood	  impact	  of	  future	  projects	  is	  now	  a	  key	  consideration	  in	  the	  staff	  
approval	  process.	  We	  are	  following	  the	  application	  of	  this	  new	  approach	  with	  great	  
interest	  and	  reserve	  judgment	  on	  whether	  staff	  might	  need	  additional	  legal	  tools	  to	  
prevent	  the	  over-‐concentration	  of	  affordable	  housing	  in	  North	  Boulder	  that	  we	  have	  
experienced	  in	  the	  recent	  past.	  
	  
When	  we	  wrote	  last	  year,	  we	  noted	  that	  the	  City’s	  work	  plan	  contained	  a	  	  
Comprehensive	  Housing	  Strategy	  initiative	  throughout	  2013,	  with	  stakeholder,	  
including	  community,	  input.	  It	  is	  our	  understanding	  that	  the	  Council	  is	  still	  
considering	  what	  direction	  to	  provide	  to	  staff	  on	  the	  development	  of	  a	  
Comprehensive	  Housing	  Strategy.	  	  We	  strongly	  support	  making	  this	  initiative	  a	  
priority	  for	  2014.	  	  We	  believe	  that	  the	  long	  -‐term	  approach	  to	  affordable	  housing	  in	  
Boulder	  must	  rely	  on	  finding	  more	  creative,	  flexible,	  affordable	  solutions	  for	  people	  
of	  all	  ages,	  occupations	  and	  income	  levels	  that	  don’t	  result	  in	  over-‐concentration	  of	  
permanently	  affordable	  housing	  or	  isolated	  low-‐income	  enclaves.	  We	  also	  would	  
stress	  again	  that	  the	  City	  find	  ways	  of	  de-‐linking	  affordable	  housing	  from	  new	  
development.	  	  Such	  de-‐linking	  would	  open	  new	  possibilities	  for	  creative	  thinking	  on	  
how	  to	  make	  housing	  in	  Boulder	  more	  affordable.	  	  It	  would	  also	  help	  protect	  from	  

Attachment C  page 23Packet Page  116



Letter	  to	  City	  Council	  Members	  on	  Inclusion	  of	  North	  Boulder	  in	  2014	  Retreat	  
Priorities	  

	   3	  

over-‐concentration	  in	  the	  few	  parts	  of	  Boulder,	  such	  as	  North	  Boulder,	  in	  which	  the	  
opportunities	  for	  new	  development	  still	  exist.	  	  	  
	  	  
Finally,	  while	  we	  accept	  that	  the	  City	  is	  unwilling	  under	  its	  current	  permanently-‐
affordable	  housing	  program	  to	  explicitly	  target	  those	  units	  to	  particular	  populations	  
such	  as	  artists,	  we	  continue	  to	  maintain	  that	  targeted	  creative	  solutions	  for	  artists,	  
seniors	  and	  singles	  that	  mix	  income	  levels	  can	  be	  valuable	  assets	  in	  our	  community.	  
Targeted	  solutions	  of	  some	  kind	  for	  artists	  would	  greatly	  enhance	  the	  potential	  of	  a	  
future	  NoBo	  Arts	  District.	  
	  
	  Thank	  you	  very	  much	  for	  your	  consideration	  of	  our	  requests.	  We	  wish	  you	  a	  
productive	  retreat	  session.	  
	  
Respectfully,	  
	  
Jim	  Leach,	  1680	  Yellow	  Pine;	  Ronnie	  Pelusio,	  4676	  Broadway;	  Margaret	  Porter,	  
1654	  Yellow	  Pine;	  Amy	  Tremper,	  1529	  Easy	  Rider	  Lane;	  Bob	  Walker,	  4657	  17th	  
Street;	  conveners,	  North	  Broadway	  Community	  Forum	  	  
Cc:	  	  
Jane	  Brautingam,	  Boulder	  City	  Manager	  
David	  Driskell,	  Susan	  Richstone,	  Jeff	  Hirt,	  Boulder	  Planning	  and	  Development	  
Services/Community	  Planning	  and	  Sustainability	  	  
Jeff	  Yegian,	  Division	  of	  Housing	  Manager	  
Betsey	  Martens,	  Stuart	  Grogan,	  Boulder	  Housing	  Partners	  
Stuart	  Lord,	  Executive	  Director,	  Emergency	  Family	  Assistance	  Association	  
Matt	  Chasansky,	  Manager	  of	  Art	  and	  Cultural	  Services	  
Maureen	  Rait,	  Acting	  Library	  Director	  
Anne	  Sawyer,	  Chair,	  Boulder	  Library	  Commission	  
	  
Sent	  electronically	  from:	  margaret.porter@mindspring.com;	  303-‐565-‐0941,	  1654	  
Yellow	  Pine	  Avenue,	  Boulder,	  Colorado,	  80304	  
	  
 
 
 
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

Attachment C  page 24Packet Page  117



 
 
Dear Councilmembers, 
 
At your forthcoming retreat, you have a substantial agenda. PLAN-Boulder County suggests the following 
topics as important community priorities: 
 
Housing 
 
We feel this is an important year for affordable housing and council has the opportunity to make some big 
changes in the future of housing in Boulder and our community as a whole.  
 
The Needs Assessment and Choice Analysis that are currently under way will collect important and valuable 
data regarding the current state of housing in Boulder and provide a basis through which to evaluate and 
implement new housing strategies. Plan-Boulder looks forward to comprehensive data on housing in Boulder 
and the community discussion that follows. 
 
We encourage council to thoroughly evaluate and assess the data collected and to look at solving our housing 
problems with an open mind. There are numerous tools available, including buy-down programs, housing 
replacement programs, voluntary real estate transfer taxes, micro-units and housing preservation programs, 
many of which could be integral to our new strategy. We also strongly urge that you consider increasing current 
requirements for payment in-lieu of affordable units and adjusting the inclusionary requirements to achieve 
community affordable housing goals. 
 
In evaluating housing in Boulder, council should consider the relationship between new jobs, housing, and 
transportation; and that council set goals regarding new growth and potential re-zoning with these relationships 
in mind. Staff, the Planning Board, and developers need council guidance on what the goals of the community 
are. It is particularly important that worker housing and small market-rate units be considered, in addition to 
low-income needs. 
 
In these deliberations, it is important to consider the provisions of the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan and 
the current city growth restriction of one-percent per year (BRC 9-14-1). Any implied changes in the BVCP 
should be wrapped into the 2015 major revision, and any changes in growth goals should be the subject of 
thorough community discussion. 
 
Development 
 
We encourage council to consider goals for downtown development regarding the distribution of worker 
housing, vs. luxury condos, vs. "class A" office space and to realign zoning and bonuses with city goals.  
 
We also suggest that council considers goals for development across Boulder and defines what we want to see 
out of future development, what it should accomplish, what it should look like, and who it should 
accommodate. Setting these goals will help guide staff, the planning board, and the development community 
resulting in developments that better serve the community as a whole. 
 

Attachment C  page 25Packet Page  118



Parking requirements for new commercial and business developments need reconsideration, along with 
approaches to shrinking our legacy of too much subsidized parking, which encourages automobile trips. 
 
The North Boulder Subcommunity Plan is now underway, a process that PBC strongly supports. It deserves 
council’s attention as much as downtown and University Hill, and every effort should be made to encourage 
community participation. The area is changing rapidly, and residents and businesses are struggling to adapt. 
Equity issues are particularly important, since our policies have skewed the housing mix. 
 
PLAN-Boulder County supports the Resilient Cities initiative, and we hope that council will emphasize the 
importance of citizen input to the “resilience coordinator” who will be hired. Coordination with interested 
departments at the University would also be valuable. 
 
Climate Change (and Transportation) 
 
We commend council for the priorities established in 2013 and for its continued work on climate issues, 
including, but not limited to, the work on Boulder’s Energy Future.  
 
The housing and development work mentioned above has major implications for carbon reduction. Boulder 
needs to do everything it can to encourage higher energy efficiency and renewables for all new buildings, 
together with standards for facilitating recycling. 
 
Boulder should move ahead with a commercial energy conservation ordinance (CECO) and mandatory 
commercial recycling. 
 
A community-wide Ecopass received a great deal of favorable discussion in the recent election. We need to 
proceed with investigation of feasibility and discussion of funding mechanisms, as well as viability for 
commuters to eastern parts of the city, particularly in-commuters. Many council candidates and other 
community leaders did not want to confuse the discussions of the transportation tax issues in the election with 
discussion of a community-wide Ecopass. That was a reasonable concern, but now that the transportation taxes 
have passed, it is time to look at the county study and move forward. PLAN-Boulder County recognizes that 
discussions with RTD will be delayed due to RTD’s other problems, and they are likely to be protracted, but it 
is time to move forward. 
 
Open Space 
 
City Goals and Work Plan items listed from 2013 include “OSMP natural resources—overarching policy 
issues,” but the detail listed under that topic neglects to mention the main question that was originally raised by 
city council during the discussions surrounding the adoption of the West Trail Study Area Management Plan. 
That was the question of sustainability of the resources given current and growing recreational pressures, heavy 
use from the entire northern metro area, and climate change. The specific bullet items listed are all relevant to 
the question of overall sustainability and management, but the fundamental question is the one that was raised 
by council: “Are we loving our open space to death, and what do we need to do to manage it in a way that is 
sustainable for future generations and that results in healthy ecosystems?” That must be the central theme for 
staff to report back to council. 
 
Clearly much of OSMP staff time and resources this year will be devoted, of necessity, to flood recovery, but 
long-term sustainability must still be the foundational goal. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
Sarah McClain & Ray Bridge, Co-Chairs, 
PLAN-Boulder County 

Attachment C  page 26Packet Page  119



 

Steve Tremper 

1529 Easy Rider Lane #201 

Boulder, CO  80304 

s.harttremper@gmail.com 

720-398-8238 home phone 

303-709-9102 cell phone 

 

 

January 3, 2014 

RE:  Open Space Mineral Rights Inventory 

Dear Boulder City Council Members: 

During the 2013 City Council campaign, I had the opportunity to speak with then candidate Sam Weaver 
about my concerns surrounding Mineral Rights Ownership on Boulder City Open Space and Mountain 
Parks.  Sam shared my concerns and has diligently pursued this issue with Mike Patton, Director of Open 
Space.   

I have been copied on several emails which have alleviated my concerns to a certain extent but I am 
hopeful that during 2014 City Council will view this issue as important enough to support Mr. Patton’s 
search to recover any missing information that can benefit the City of Boulder and further add necessary 
protection to our Open Space lands.  It also seems that given this period during which the permit 
moratorium is in place presents an ideal window to gather any missing pieces to this puzzle. 

I greatly appreciate your reviewing this letter and potentially discussing it during the Council’s upcoming 
Annual Retreat. 

Sincerely, 

 

Steve Tremper 

 

Cc:  Mike Patton, Boulder City Open Space Director 

       Jane Brautigam, City Manager, Boulder 

Attachment C  page 27Packet Page  120

mailto:s.harttremper@gmail.com


 

January 8, 2014 

Dear City of Boulder City Council Members: 

We are writing as the Executive Committee of the University Hill Neighborhood 
Association. First, we would like to thank you all for your public service and for your 
commitment to making the City of Boulder an even better place to live. 

 
The University of Colorado is a huge part of Boulder’s unique identity and contributes 

enormously to our City’s economic vitality. The benefits of CU’s presence are experienced 
citywide, from the students who pay rent here, and their parents who stay in hotels and shop on 
Pearl Street, to the entrepreneurial culture spinning off from University research. Unfortunately, 
the negative impacts are felt disproportionately on the Hill, from red cups scattered on the 
streets, to the 2:00 a.m. party noise and fireworks, and the side-effects of over-occupancy in 
rentals (parking, litter, noise). We feel it’s time the City dedicated funds and focus to mitigate 
these impacts. 

 
As a college town, our challenges are not unique. However, we can also learn much from 

other college towns about best practices for making our neighborhood a better and safer place for 
both students and long-term residents. As we enter 2014, we ask that the City make it a priority 
to address chronic problems on the Hill.  Specifically, we ask that the City address the following 
issues: 
• Provide start-up funds for the creation of a Hill Residential Services District as proposed in 

the Revitalization Strategy Plan. 
• Increase budget and staffing, especially on weekends, for enforcement of noise, fireworks, 

litter and snow shoveling ordinances. Invest in technology (software) to track violations and 
report back to citizens who reported them. 

• In concert with CU Police and Boulder Police, develop a “party patrol” strategy of heavy 
enforcement of noise ordinances in the fall to set a tone for the rest of the year. Instruct 
officers to actually give tickets, rather than just warnings.  Fort Collins police have 
successfully implemented this strategy and could be a valuable resource for the Boulder 
Police Department. 

• Require bear-resistant trash containers – or enclosure of trash in garages until 6 a.m. on the 
day of pick up – for alleys throughout Boulder. 

• Support proposed public-private partnerships for new underground parking structures in the 
Hill commercial district, similar to the St. Julien parking structure. 
 

Occupancy and Rental Licenses 
The trend on the Hill is for single-family homes to be sold as investment properties because 

they are more valuable as rentals due to the fact that occupancy limits are not enforced. For 
example, a house with a legal occupancy limit of three unrelated people might be advertised for 
sale as a 6-bedroom home, including income and expense estimates based on renting it to six (or 
more) occupants, at more than $800 per person.  

Attachment C  page 28Packet Page  121



 
City Council needs to reverse this trend by enforcing the occupancy limits set in the zoning 

by: 
• Requiring inspectors to do a “bed check” at time of rental license renewal and application to 

verify occupancy limits are not being violated. 
• Passing an ordinance requiring an occupancy disclosure in the advertising of rentals and 

homes for sale in Boulder (as in Fort Collins).  
• Requiring a rental license when parents purchase a home for their children to live in while 

attending CU if that home is rented to additional occupants not related to the owners.  
 
Thank you for your time and consideration in addressing these issues. Taking concrete steps now 
will ensure that the City of Boulder protects one of its greatest assets. 
  
Regards, 
UHNA-EC 
Ellen Aiken; Monique Cole; Lisa Shoemaker; Scott Thomas 
10.aikenhill@gmail.com, monique@moniquecole.com, lisashoemaker1@msn.com, 
cwa.boulder@gmail.com 
 

Attachment C  page 29Packet Page  122

mailto:10.aikenhill@gmail.com
mailto:monique@moniquecole.com
mailto:lisashoemaker1@msn.com
mailto:cwa.boulder@gmail.com

	00 Council Retreat Agenda 2014
	01 Retreat Committee report 12-17-13
	Attachment 1 _Sustainability Framework
	Attachment 2_Boulder Valley Comp Plan Policies
	Attachment 3A_Council Committee Assignments
	Attachment 3B_Council Committee Assignments - Vacancies Highlighted
	Attachment 4 _Council Working Agreements

	02 Boards and Commissions Input
	Beverages Licensing Authority
	BHP
	Boulder Arts Commission
	Boulder Downtown Advisory Board
	Boulder Junction Access Districts
	Chautauqua
	Downtown Management Commission
	Environmental Advisory Board
	Human Relations Commission
	Landmarks Board
	OSBT
	Planning Board
	PRAB
	TAB
	UHCAMC
	WRAB

	03 Community Input
	Better Boulder
	Dairy Center
	Eco-Cycle Board Letter
	Feinberg Letter
	NBCF letter
	PLAN Boulder County letter
	Steve Tremper letter
	UHNA_Letter
	Occupancy and Rental Licenses





